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FLEX LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Co. Reg. No. 199002645H 

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT 
March 31, 2018 

(U.S. dollars in thousands unless otherwise designated as Singapore dollars, S$) 
 

The directors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Flex Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries (the "Company") and balance sheet of Flex Ltd. (the “Parent”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2018. 

 
In the opinion of the directors, except for the use of the equity method of accounting for investments in subsidiary 

corporations to report investments in subsidiary corporations as a separate line in the Parent’s balance sheet, instead of 
consolidating the investments under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and supplementary financial statements of the Parent, as set out on 
pages S-6 to S-60 and pages S-61 through S-78, respectively, are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company and of the Parent as of March 31, 2018, and of the financial performance, results, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company for the financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are 
reasonable grounds to believe that the Parent will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 
 
Directors 
 
     The directors of Flex Ltd. in office at the date of this statement are: 
 

 Michael D. Capellas 
 Jennifer Li 
 Michael M. McNamara 
 Marc A. Onetto 
 Daniel H. Schulman 
 Willy Chao-Wei Shih, Ph.D. 
 Lay Koon Tan 
 William D. Watkins 
 Lawrence A. Zimmerman 

 
Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by Means of the Acquisition of Shares and Debentures 

 
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any arrangement to 

which the Parent is a party, whose object is or one of whose objects is to enable the directors of the Parent to acquire 
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Parent, nor any other body corporate except for the 
options, share bonus awards and profits interests awards mentioned below. 
 
Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures 
 

The interest of the directors who held office at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2018 (including those 
held by their spouses and infant children) in the share capital or debentures of the Parent and related corporations were as 
follows: 
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  Interest Held 

Ordinary Shares, no Par Value, in Flex Ltd.  
As of March 31, 

2017  
As of March 31, 

2018 
H. Raymond Bingham (5)  71,678   —  
Michael D. Capellas (1)  53,792   75,155  

Jennifer Li (2)  —   —  

Michael M. McNamara (3) (4)  1,963,114   2,226,640  

Marc A. Onetto (1)  40,328   53,925  

Daniel H. Schulman (1)  141,674   155,271  

Willy Chao-Wei Shih, Ph.D. (1)  168,298   168,298  

Lay Koon Tan (1)  103,525   114,394  

William D. Watkins (1)  46,629   21,226  

Lawrence A. Zimmerman (1)  66,375   79,972  

     
Ordinary Shares, $0.0005 Per Share Par Value, in Elementum Holding 
Ltd.     

Michael M. McNamara (6)  334,824   864,649  

 
(1)  As of March 31, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Capellas also held an interest in 13,597 and 14,613 contingent share bonus awards, respectively, which are not 
included in the totals above. As of March 31, 2017 and 2018, Messrs. Onetto, Schulman, Shih, Tan, Watkins and Zimmerman each held interests in 
13,597 and 11,504 contingent share bonus awards, respectively, which are not included in the totals above. The contingent share bonus awards for each 
year vest on the date immediately prior to the date of the Parent’s 2017 and 2018 annual general meetings, respectively. 
 
(2)  Ms. Li was appointed to the Board of Directors on January 8, 2018 and at the time of her appointment as well as of March 31, 2018, her interest 
held in the Parent was zero. Ms. Li also held an interest in 6,921 contingent share bonus awards which vest immediately prior to the date of the Parent’s 
August 2018 annual general meeting.  
 
(3)  As of March 31, 2017 and 2018, Mr. McNamara also held interests in 931,392 and 882,636 contingent share bonus awards, respectively, which are 
not included in the totals above. These share bonus awards comprise ordinary shares of the Parent to be allotted and issued pursuant to the 2017 Equity 
Incentive Plan upon satisfaction of the terms and conditions set by the committee administering the plans upon the grant of such contingent share bonus 
awards. 
 
(4)  As of March 31, 2017 and 2018, Mr. McNamara also held interests in 1,091,416 and 1,062,716 share bonus awards, respectively, which are not 
included in the totals above, where vesting is contingent upon meeting certain performance or market criteria. 
 
(5) Mr. Bingham was a director of the Company as of March 31, 2017, and had resigned from the Board as of March 31, 2018.  As of March 31, 2017, 
Mr. Bingham held an interest in 21,367 contingent share bonus awards, which are not included in the totals above. This interest of 21,367 contingent 
share bonus awards vested in full on Mr. Bingham's final day as a director of the Company on June 29, 2017. 
 
(6) As of March 31, 2017 and 2018, Mr. McNamara also held interests in 1,784,473 and 1,254,648 profits interests awards granted by Elementum 
Holding Ltd., a subsidiary of the Parent, respectively, which are not included in the totals above. As of March 31, 2018, 864,649 ordinary shares of 
Elementum Holding Ltd., was issued in consideration for services performed or to be performed pursuant to the partial vesting of the profits interests 
awards. Such services shall include services to Elementum Holding Ltd., or for the benefit of Elementum Holding Ltd. 
 

Options to acquire ordinary shares, no par value, in Flex Ltd.  
          

Name  
As of March 

31, 2017  
As of March 

31, 2018  
Exercise 
Price  Exercisable Period  

Willy Chao-Wei Shih, Ph.D.  25,000   —   $ 11.00   01.10.08 to 01.10.18  
 

Other than as disclosed above, no other directors of the Parent had an interest in any shares, debentures or share 
options of the Parent or related corporations either at the beginning or the end of the financial year as recorded in the 
register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Parent under section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50. 
 
 
Share Option and Award Plans (Schemes) 

 2017 Equity Incentive Plan 
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The Parent historically granted equity compensation awards to acquire the Parent's ordinary shares under the 2010 
Equity Incentive Plan (the "the 2010 Plan"). Effective August 15, 2017, the Parent began granting equity compensation 
awards under the 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2017 Plan”), which replaced the 2010 Plan.  No further awards were 
granted under the 2010 Plan and shares remaining available for the grant of equity awards under the 2010 Plan, were not 
transferred to the 2017 Plan's share reserve.  Options issued to employees under the 2017 Plan generally vest over four 
years and expire ten years from the date of grant. Options granted to non-employee directors expire five years from the 
date of grant.  The exercise price of options granted to employees is determined by the Parent's Board of Directors or the 
Compensation Committee and may not be less than the closing price of the Parent's ordinary shares on the date of grant.  
Please see the Directors’ Statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2011 through to the Directors’ Statement for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2017 for details of the number and class of shares in respect of which the options were 
granted, the date of expiration of the options, the basis upon which the option may be exercised, the price or method of 
fixing the price of issue of the shares underlying the options, whether the holders of options have any right to participate 
by virtue of the option in any share issue of any other company and the particulars of shares issued during those periods. 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, no options were granted under either the 2017 Plan or the 2010 Plan.  

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, share bonus awards for a total of 6,155,761 ordinary shares in the 

Parent were granted under the 2017 Plan at market values equal to the closing price of the Parent’s ordinary shares on the 
date of grant ranging from $15.81 to $20.25, and a weighted-average grant-date market value of $16.99.  Upon the 
satisfaction of prescribed time-based, performance based, and/or market-based vesting conditions, ordinary shares in the 
Parent will be issued, free of payment, to the participants.  There is no exercise price payable.  
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, a total of 125,949 ordinary shares in the Parent were issued by virtue 
of the exercise of options under the 2017 Plan.  As of March 31, 2018, the number and class of unissued shares, under the 
2017 Plan underlying the options was 6,878 ordinary shares, net of cancellation of options for 9,500 ordinary shares during 
the financial year 2018. For all the Parent’s options under the 2017 Plan, the expiration dates range from April 2018 to 
November 2021. 

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, a total of 6,473,562 ordinary shares in the Parent were issued by 

virtue of the vesting of share bonus awards granted under the 2017 Plan.  As of March 31, 2018, the number and class of 
unissued shares comprised in share bonus awards granted under the 2017 Plan was 13,892,042 ordinary shares, net of 
cancellation of share bonus awards for 1,488,739 ordinary shares during the financial year 2018. For all the Parent’s share 
bonus awards under the 2017 Plan, the expiration dates range from April 2018 to February 2028. 

 
Holders of options granted under the 2017 Plan have no rights to participate, by virtue of such options, in any share 

issuances of any other company. 

 2014 NEXTracker Incentive Equity Plan 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2016, in conjunction with the acquisition of NEXTracker Inc. 
("NEXTracker"), the Parent assumed all of the outstanding unvested share bonus awards and outstanding unvested options 
to purchase shares of common stock of NEXTracker, and converted all these awards and options into awards and options 
over ordinary shares of the Parent.  As a result, the Parent granted equity compensation awards under an additional equity 
compensation plan as of March 31, 2016, the 2014 NEXTracker Equity Incentive Plan (the "NEXTracker Plan").  Please 
see the Directors’ Statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 through to the Directors’ Statement for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2017 for details of the number and class shares in respect of which the options were 
granted. Options issued to employees under the NEXTracker Plan generally have a vesting period of two to four years 
from vesting commencement date and expire ten years from the date of grant.  The exercise price of options granted to 
employees was determined by the Parent based on a conversion rate agreed upon in the purchase agreement of 
NEXTracker. 

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Parent modified the vesting conditions of options covering 

288,386 ordinary shares under the NEXTracker Plan contingent on meeting certain performance targets, to vest in 
installment of a three-year period commencing September 29, 2017. These modified options were then re-granted under 
the NEXTracker Plan with an exercise price ranging from $0.08 to $5.24, and a weighted-average exercise price of $0.54.  
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During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, a total of 510,322 ordinary shares in the Parent were issued by virtue 
of the exercise of options under the NEXTracker Plan. As of March 31, 2018, the number and class of unissued shares 
underlying the options, under the NEXTracker Plan, was 1,061,260 ordinary shares, net of cancellation of options for 
352,820 ordinary shares during the financial year 2018. For all the Parent’s options under the NEXTracker Plan, the 
expiration dates range from April 2018 to September 2027. 

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Parent modified the vesting conditions of share bonus awards of 

524,978 ordinary shares under the NEXTracker Plan contingent on meeting certain performance targets, to vest in 
installment of a three-year period commencing September 29, 2017.  These modified share bonus awards were then re-
granted under the NEXTracker Plan with a grant date fair value of $16.73.  

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, a total of 471,831 ordinary shares in the Parent were issued by virtue 

of the vesting of share bonus awards granted under the NEXTracker Plan. As of March 31, 2018, the number and class of 
unissued shares comprised in share bonus awards granted under the NEXTracker Plan was 727,650 ordinary shares, net 
of cancellation of share bonus awards for 868,934 ordinary shares during the financial year 2018. For all the Parent’s 
share bonus awards under the NEXTracker Plan, the expiration dates range from April 2018 to September 2027. 

 
Holders of options granted under the NEXTracker Plan have no rights to participate, by virtue of such options, in any 

share issuances of any other company. 

 BrightBox Technologies 2013 Plan 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2017, in conjunction with an immaterial acquisition, the Parent assumed 
all of the outstanding, unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of the acquiree, and converted all of these 
options into options over ordinary shares of the Parent. As a result, the Parent granted equity compensation awards under 
an additional equity compensation plan as of March 31, 2017, the BrightBox Technologies 2013 Plan (the "BrightBox 
Plan"). Options issued to employees under the Brightbox Plan have a vesting period of three years from vesting 
commencement date and expire ten years from the grant date. The exercise price of options granted to employees was 
determined by the Parent based on a conversion rate agreed upon in the purchase agreement of the acquiree. No additional 
grants will be made out of this plan in the future. 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, no options over ordinary shares of the Parent were granted under 
the BrightBox Plan. 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, a total of 30,913 ordinary shares in the Parent were issued by virtue 
of the exercise of options under the Brightbox Plan.  As of March 31, 2018, the number and class of unissued shares 
underlying the options, under the Brightbox Plan, was 121,412 ordinary shares, net of cancellation of options for 6,732 
ordinary shares during the financial year 2018. 

The expiration for all of the Parent's options deemed granted under the BrightBox Plan is on May 16, 2026. 

Holders of options granted under the BrightBox Plan have no rights to participate, by virtue of such options, in any 
share issuances of any other company. 

 
Auditors 
 

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment. 
 
On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

   
/s/ MICHAEL D. CAPELLAS  /s/ MICHAEL M. MCNAMARA 
Chairman/Director  Director 
 
Singapore 
June 14, 2018 
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FLEX LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands, except 
share amounts) 

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,472,424   $ 1,830,675  

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2) 2,517,695   2,192,704  

Inventories 3,799,829   3,396,462  

Other current assets 1,380,466   967,935  

Total current assets 9,170,414   8,387,776  
Property and equipment, net 2,239,506   2,317,026  

Goodwill 1,121,170   984,867  

Other intangible assets, net 424,433   362,181  

Other assets 760,332   541,513  

Total assets $ 13,715,855   $ 12,593,363  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Bank borrowings and current portion of long-term debt $ 43,011   $ 61,534  

Accounts payable 5,122,303   4,484,908  

Accrued payroll 383,332   344,245  

Other current liabilities 1,719,418   1,613,940  

Total current liabilities 7,268,064   6,504,627  
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,897,631   2,890,609  

Other liabilities 531,587   519,851  

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)    
Shareholders' equity    

Flex Ltd. Shareholders' equity    
Ordinary shares, no par value; 578,317,848 and 581,534,129 issued, and 528,078,493 
and 531,294,774 outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively 6,636,747 

 
 6,733,539 

 

Treasury stock, at cost; 50,239,355 shares as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively (388,215 )  (388,215 ) 
Accumulated deficit (3,144,114 )  (3,572,648 ) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (85,845 )  (128,143 ) 

Total Flex Ltd. shareholders' equity 3,018,573   2,644,533  
Noncontrolling interests —   33,743  

Total shareholders' equity 3,018,573   2,678,276  

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 13,715,855   $ 12,593,363  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FLEX LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands, except per share amounts) 

Net sales $ 25,441,131   $ 23,862,934   $ 24,418,885  

Cost of sales 23,778,404   22,303,231   22,810,824  

Restructuring charges 66,845   38,758   —  

Gross profit 1,595,882   1,520,945   1,608,061  
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,019,399   937,339   954,890  

Intangible amortization 78,640   81,396   65,965  

Restructuring charges 23,846   10,637   —  

Other charges (income), net (169,719 )  21,193   47,738  

Interest and other, net 122,823   99,532   84,793  

Income before income taxes 520,893   370,848   454,675  
Provision for income taxes 92,359   51,284   10,594  

Net income $ 428,534   $ 319,564   $ 444,081  

      
Earnings per share:      

Basic $ 0.81   $ 0.59   $ 0.80  

Diluted $ 0.80   $ 0.59   $ 0.79  

Weighted-average shares used in computing per share amounts:      
Basic 529,782   540,503   557,667  

Diluted 536,598   546,220   564,869  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FLEX LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Net income $ 428,534   $ 319,564   $ 444,081  
Other comprehensive income (loss):      

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of zero tax 45,618   (1,324 )  17,846  

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other, net of zero 
tax (3,320 )  9,096 

 
 26,744 

 

Comprehensive income $ 470,832   $ 327,336   $ 488,671  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FLEX LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

       
Accumulated Other Comprehensive 

Loss       

 Ordinary Shares              Total 

 
Shares 

Outstanding  Amount  
Accumulated 

deficit  

Unrealized gain 
(loss) on  

derivative  
instruments and  

other 
 

Foreign 
currency  

translation  
adjustments  

Total 
accumulated  

other  
comprehensive  

loss 
 

Total Flex Ltd. 
Shareholders'  

Equity  
Noncontrolling 

Interests  
Shareholders' 

Equity 

 (In thousands) 

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2015 563,323   $ 6,877,612   $ (4,336,293 )  $ (68,266 )  $ (112,239 )  $ (180,505 )  $ 2,360,814   $ 35,436   $ 2,396,250  
Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary shares at cost (37,314 )  (412,819 )  —   —   —   —   (412,819 )  —   (412,819 ) 

Exercise of stock options 10,244   61,278   —   —   —   —   61,278   486   61,764  
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested shares under share bonus 
awards 8,570 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 

Premium on acquired equity plan —   799   —   —   —   —   799   —   799  
Net income —   —   444,081   —   —   —   444,081   (6,715 )  437,366  
Stock-based compensation, net of tax —   72,129   —   —   —   —   72,129   5,451   77,580  
Total other comprehensive loss —   —   —   26,744   17,846   44,590   44,590   —   44,590  
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2016 544,823   6,598,999   (3,892,212 )  (41,522 )  (94,393 )  (135,915 )  2,570,872   34,658   2,605,530  
Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary shares at cost (25,125 )  (345,782 )  —   —   —   —   (345,782 )  —   (345,782 ) 

Exercise of stock options 2,283   12,438   —   —   —   —   12,438   610   13,048  
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested shares under share bonus 
awards 9,313 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 

Issuance of subsidiary shares —   —   —   —   —   —   —   9,306   9,306  
Net income —   —   319,564   —   —   —   319,564   (8,492 )  311,072  
Stock-based compensation, net of tax —   79,669   —   —   —   —   79,669   (2,339 )  77,330  
Total other comprehensive income —   —   —   9,096   (1,324 )  7,772   7,772   —   7,772  
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2017 531,294   6,345,324   (3,572,648 )  (32,426 )  (95,717 )  (128,143 )  2,644,533   33,743   2,678,276  
Repurchase of Flex Ltd. ordinary shares at cost (10,829 )  (180,050 )  —   —   —   —   (180,050 )  —   (180,050 ) 

Exercise of stock options 667   2,774   —   —   —   —   2,774   256   3,030  
Issuance of Flex Ltd. vested shares under share bonus 
awards 6,946 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 
 — 

 

Issuance of subsidiary shares, net —   —   —   —   —   —   —   63,363   63,363  
Net income —   —   428,534   —   —   —   428,534   (7,573 )  420,961  
Stock-based compensation, net of tax —   80,484   —   —   —   —   80,484   849   81,333  
Deconsolidation of subsidiary entity —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (90,638 )  (90,638 ) 

Total other comprehensive income —   —   —   (3,320 )  45,618   42,298   42,298   —   42,298  
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2018 528,078   $ 6,248,532   $ (3,144,114 )  $ (35,746 )  $ (50,099 )  $ (85,845 )  $ 3,018,573   $ —   $ 3,018,573  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FLEX LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities:      
Net income $ 428,534   $ 319,564   $ 444,081  

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating 
activities:      

Depreciation, amortization and other impairment charges 555,364   609,660   515,367  

Provision for doubtful accounts (Note 2) 8,225   (184 )  72,295  

Non-cash other loss (income) (58,223 )  6,858   24,521  

Stock-based compensation 81,346   77,330   77,580  

Gain from deconsolidation of subsidiary entity (Note 6) (151,574 )  —   —  

Income taxes 43,187   (20,041 )  (64,346 ) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:      

Accounts receivable (296,910 )  (164,239 )  317,946  

Inventories (354,319 )  85,047   84,790  

Other current and noncurrent assets (138,184 )  84,949   (2,704 ) 
Accounts payable 623,148   268,686   (365,051 ) 
Other current and noncurrent liabilities 13,004   (117,721 )  31,966  

Net cash provided by operating activities 753,598   1,149,909   1,136,445  

Cash flows from investing activities:      
Purchases of property and equipment (561,997 )  (525,111 )  (510,634 ) 
Proceeds from the disposition of property and equipment 44,780   35,606   13,676  

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (268,377 )  (189,084 )  (916,527 ) 
Divestitures of businesses, net of cash held in divested businesses (2,949 )  36,731   5,740  

Other investing activities, net (120,442 )  (60,329 )  11,369  

Net cash used in investing activities (908,985 )  (702,187 )  (1,396,376 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities:      
Proceeds from bank borrowings and long-term debt 1,366,000   312,741   884,702  

Repayments of bank borrowings and long-term debt (1,420,977 )  (141,730 )  (190,221 ) 
Payments for repurchases of ordinary shares (180,050 )  (349,532 )  (420,317 ) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,774   12,438   61,278  

Other financing activities, net 44,468   (76,024 )  (85,800 ) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (187,785 )  (242,107 )  249,642  

Effect of exchange rates on cash (15,079 )  17,490   (10,549 ) 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (358,251 )  223,105   (20,838 ) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,830,675   1,607,570   1,628,408  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,472,424   $ 1,830,675   $ 1,607,570  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FLEX LTD. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY 

Flex Ltd. ("Flex" or the "Company") was incorporated in the Republic of Singapore in May 1990. The Company's 
operations have expanded over the years through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions. The Company is a 
globally-recognized, provider of Sketch-to-Scaletm services - innovative design, engineering, manufacturing, and supply chain 
services and solutions - from conceptual sketch to full-scale production. The Company designs, builds, ships and services 
complete packaged consumer and enterprise products, from athletic shoes to electronics, for companies of all sizes in various 
industries and end-markets, through its activities in the following segments: 

•  Communications & Enterprise Compute ("CEC"), which includes telecom business of radio access base 
stations, remote radio heads, and small cells for wireless infrastructure; networking business which includes 
optical, routing, broadcasting, and switching products for the data and video networks; server and storage 
platforms for both enterprise and cloud-based deployments; next generation storage and security appliance 
products; and rack level solutions, converged infrastructure and software-defined product solutions; 

•  Consumer Technologies Group ("CTG"), which includes consumer-related businesses in connected living, 
wearables, gaming, augmented and virtual reality, fashion and apparel, and mobile devices; and including 
various supply chain solutions for notebook personal computers, tablets, and printers; 

•  Industrial and Emerging Industries ("IEI"), which is comprised of energy including advanced metering 
infrastructure, energy storage, smart lighting, electric vehicle infrastructure, smart solar energy, 
semiconductor and capital equipment, office solutions, industrial, home and lifestyle, industrial automation, 
and kiosks; and 

•  High Reliability Solutions ("HRS"), which is comprised of health solutions business, including consumer 
health, digital health, disposables, precision plastics, drug delivery, diagnostics, life sciences and imaging 
equipment; automotive business, including vehicle electrification, connectivity, autonomous vehicles, and 
clean technologies. 

The Company's service offerings include a comprehensive range of value-added design and engineering services that are 
tailored to the various markets and needs of its customers. Other focused service offerings relate to manufacturing (including 
enclosures, metals, plastic injection molding, precision plastics, machining, and mechanicals), system integration and assembly 
and test services, materials procurement, inventory management, logistics and after-sales services (including product repair, 
warranty services, re-manufacturing and maintenance) and supply chain management software solutions and component 
product offerings (including rigid and flexible printed circuit boards and power adapters and chargers). 

 

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Flex and its majority-owned subsidiaries, 
after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. Amounts included in these consolidated financial statements are 
expressed in U.S. dollars unless otherwise designated. The Company consolidates its majority-owned subsidiaries and 
investments in entities in which the Company has a controlling interest. For the consolidated majority-owned subsidiaries in 
which the Company owns less than 100%, the Company recognizes a noncontrolling interest for the ownership of the 
noncontrolling owners. As of March 31, 2018, the noncontrolling interest was not material as a result of the deconsolidation of 
one of our subsidiaries (refer to note 6 for additional information). In prior years, the noncontrolling interest was included on 
the consolidated balance sheets as a component of total shareholders' equity. The associated noncontrolling owners' interest in 
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the income or losses of these companies is not material to the Company's results of operations for any period presented, and is 
classified as a component of interest and other, net, in the consolidated statements of operations. 

The Company has certain non-majority-owned equity investments in non-publicly traded companies that are accounted 
for using the equity method of accounting. The equity method of accounting is used when the Company has an investment in 
common stock or in-substance common stock, and either (a) has the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of 
the issuer, or (b) if the Company has a voting percentage of a corporation equal to or generally greater than 20% but less than 
50%, and for non-majority-owned investments in partnerships when greater than 5%. The equity in earnings (losses) of equity 
method investees are immaterial for all periods presented, and are included in interest and other, net in the consolidated 
statements of operations. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America ("U.S. GAAP" or "GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other 
things: allowances for doubtful accounts; inventory write-downs; valuation allowances for deferred tax assets; uncertain tax 
positions; valuation and useful lives of long-lived assets including property, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill; asset 
impairments; fair values of financial instruments including investments, notes receivable and derivative instruments; 
restructuring charges; contingencies; warranty provisions; fair values of assets obtained and liabilities assumed in business 
combinations and the fair values of stock options and share bonus awards granted under the Company's stock-based 
compensation plans. Actual results may differ from previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to the 
consolidated financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are 
reflected in the period they occur. 

Translation of Foreign Currencies 

The financial position and results of operations for certain of the Company's subsidiaries are measured using a currency 
other than the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities for these subsidiaries are translated 
into U.S. dollars at the current exchange rates as of the respective balance sheet dates. Revenue and expense items are translated 
at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Cumulative gains and losses from the translation of these 
subsidiaries' financial statements are reported as other comprehensive loss, a component of shareholders' equity. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity 
involved, and re-measurement adjustments for foreign operations where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency, are included 
in operating results. Non-functional currency transaction gains and losses, and re-measurement adjustments were not material to 
the Company's consolidated results of operations for any of the periods presented, and have been classified as a component of 
interest and other, net in the consolidated statements of operations. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes manufacturing revenue when it ships goods or the goods are received by its customer, title and 
risk of ownership have passed, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and recoverability is reasonably assured. 
Generally, there are no formal substantive customer acceptance requirements or further obligations related to manufacturing 
services. If such requirements or obligations exist, then the Company recognizes the related revenues at the time when such 
requirements are completed, and the obligations are fulfilled. Some of the Company's customer contracts allow the recovery of 
certain costs related to manufacturing services that are over and above the prices charged for the related products. Also, certain 
customer contracts may contain certain commitments and obligations that may result in additional expenses or decreases in 
revenue. Refer to note 3 "Revenue Recognition" for further details. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
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Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are primarily accounts 
receivable, cash and cash equivalents, and derivative instruments. 

Customer Credit Risk 

The Company has an established customer credit policy, through which it manages customer credit exposures through 
credit evaluations, credit limit setting, monitoring, and enforcement of credit limits for new and existing customers. The 
Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and makes provisions for doubtful accounts 
based on the outcome of those credit evaluations. The Company evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable based on 
specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with collections and the age of past due 
receivables. To the extent the Company identifies exposures as a result of credit or customer evaluations, the Company also 
reviews other customer related exposures, including but not limited to inventory and related contractual obligations. 

On April 21, 2016, SunEdison, Inc. (together with certain of its subsidiaries, "SunEdison"), filed a petition for 
reorganization under bankruptcy law. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Company recognized a bad debt reserve 
charge of $61.0 million associated with its outstanding SunEdison receivables and accepted return of previously shipped 
inventory of approximately $90.0 million. During the second quarter of fiscal year 2017, prices for solar panel modules 
declined significantly. The Company determined that certain solar panel inventory previously designated for SunEdison on 
hand at the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2017 was not fully recoverable and recorded a charge of $60.0 million to 
reduce the carrying costs to market during fiscal year 2017. In addition, the Company recognized a $16.0 million impairment 
charge for solar module equipment and incurred $16.9 million of incremental costs primarily related to negative margin sales 
and other associated solar panel direct costs. The total charge for fiscal year 2017 of $92.9 million is included in cost of sales.  

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts during fiscal years 2018, 
2017 and 2016: 

 
Balance at 
Beginning  

of Year  
Charged to 
Costs and  
Expenses  

Deductions/ 
Write-Offs  

Balance at 
End of  
Year 

 (In thousands) 

Allowance for doubtful accounts:        
Year ended March 31, 2016 $ 4,534   $ 72,295   $ (12,221 )  $ 64,608  

Year ended March 31, 2017 $ 64,608   $ (184 )  $ (7,122 )  $ 57,302  

Year ended March 31, 2018 $ 57,302   $ 8,225   $ (5,476 )  $ 60,051  

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Company recognized a bad debt charge of $61.0 million associated with its 
outstanding SunEdison receivables as explained above, and another charge of $10.5 million relating to a separate distressed 
customer which was also written-off during the year. 

No customer accounted for greater than 10% of the Company's net sales in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. One customer 
(including net sales from its parent company) within the Company's CTG segment, accounted for approximately 11% of the 
Company's net sales in fiscal year 2016, and approximately 17% of the Company's total accounts receivable balances in fiscal 
years 2018 and 2017, respectively. Another customer included in the Company's CEC segment, accounted for approximately 
11% of the Company's total accounts receivable balance in fiscal year 2016. 

The Company's ten largest customers accounted for approximately 41%, 43% and 46%, of its net sales in fiscal years 
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Derivative Instruments 
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The amount subject to credit risk related to derivative instruments is generally limited to the amount, if any, by which a 
counterparty's obligations exceed the obligations of the Company with that counterparty. To manage counterparty risk, the 
Company limits its derivative transactions to those with recognized financial institutions. See additional discussion of 
derivatives in note 9. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions that management believes to be of 
high credit quality. These financial institutions are located in many different locations throughout the world. The Company's 
investment portfolio, which consists of short-term bank deposits and money market accounts, is classified as cash equivalents 
on the consolidated balance sheets. 

All highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from original dates of purchase are carried at cost, 
which approximates fair market value, and are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 
deposited in checking accounts, money market funds and time deposits. 

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following: 

 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 

Cash and bank balances $ 1,019,802   $ 763,834  

Money market funds and time deposits 452,622   1,066,841  

 $ 1,472,424   $ 1,830,675  

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out basis) or net realizable value. The stated cost is 
comprised of direct materials, labor and overhead. The components of inventories, net of applicable lower of cost or net 
realizable value write-downs, were as follows: 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 
Raw materials $ 2,760,410   $ 2,537,623  
Work-in-progress 450,569   279,493  
Finished goods 588,850   579,346  

 $ 3,799,829   $ 3,396,462  

Property and Equipment, Net 

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization 
are recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, with the exception of building 
leasehold improvements, which are amortized over the term of the lease, if shorter. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed 
as incurred. Property and equipment was comprised of the following: 
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Depreciable 

Life  
(In Years) 

 As of March 31, 

  2018  2017 

   (In thousands) 

Machinery and equipment 3 - 10  $ 3,004,707   $ 3,233,392  

Buildings 30  1,154,881   1,237,739  

Leasehold improvements up to 30  414,917   395,663  

Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment and software 3 - 7  482,248   502,223  

Land —  152,992   145,663  

Construction-in-progress —  287,724   212,326  

   5,497,469   5,727,006  
Accumulated depreciation and amortization   (3,257,963 )  (3,409,980 ) 
Property and equipment, net   $ 2,239,506   $ 2,317,026  

 

Total depreciation expense associated with property and equipment amounted to approximately $434.4 million, $432.2 
million and $425.7 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Property and equipment excludes assets held for 
sale as a result of the Company's agreement with a certain Chinese manufacturing company to sell its China-based Multek 
operations, as discussed in note 18. 

The Company reviews property and equipment for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of property and equipment 
is determined by comparing its carrying amount to the lowest level of identifiable projected undiscounted cash flows the 
property and equipment are expected to generate. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of property and 
equipment exceeds its fair value. 

Deferred Income Taxes 

The Company provides for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method of accounting for income 
taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences between the 
carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities by applying the applicable statutory tax rate to such 
differences. Additionally, the Company assesses whether each income tax position is "more likely than not" of being sustained 
on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation, if any. For each income tax position that meets the "more likely 
than not" recognition threshold, the Company would then assess the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely 
of being realized upon effective settlement with the tax authority. 

Accounting for Business and Asset Acquisitions 

The Company has actively pursued business and asset acquisitions, which are accounted for using the acquisition method 
of accounting. The fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses are included in the Company's 
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. The Company is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and results of operations during the reporting period. 
Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, the fair value of acquired net operating assets, property and 
equipment, intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities, useful lives of plant and equipment and amortizable lives for 
acquired intangible assets. Any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identified assets and liabilities 
acquired is recognized as goodwill. 

The Company estimates the preliminary fair value of acquired assets and liabilities as of the date of acquisition based on 
information available at that time. Contingent consideration is recorded at fair value as of the date of the acquisition with 
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subsequent adjustments recorded in earnings. Changes to valuation allowances on acquired deferred tax assets are recognized in 
the provision for, or benefit from, income taxes. The valuation of these tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities 
is subject to further management review and may change materially between the preliminary allocation and end of the purchase 
price allocation period. Any changes in these estimates may have a material effect on the Company's consolidated operating 
results or financial position. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. Recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level by 
comparing the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit, which is measured 
based upon, among other factors, market multiples for comparable companies as well as a discounted cash flow analysis. If the 
recorded value of the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities ("net book value") of any reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an 
impairment loss may be required to be recognized. Further, to the extent the net book value of the Company as a whole is 
greater than its fair value in the aggregate, all, or a significant portion of its goodwill may be considered impaired. 

The Company has four reporting units, which correspond to its four reportable operating segments: HRS, CTG, IEI and 
CEC. The Company concluded that there was no change to its reporting units in fiscal year 2018 and performed its goodwill 
impairment assessment on January 1, 2018. The Company bypassed the qualitative "Step Zero" assessment and performed a 
quantitative assessment of its goodwill and determined that no impairment existed as of the date of the impairment test because 
the fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its carrying value.  

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company's goodwill during fiscal years 2018 and 2017 (in thousands): 

 

 HRS  CTG  IEI  CEC  Total 

Balance, as of March 31, 2016 439,336   68,234   322,803   111,693   942,066  
Additions (1) —   42,989   17,544   3,309   63,842  

Divestitures (2) (1,787 )  —   (2,640 )  —   (4,427 ) 
Purchase accounting adjustments (3) 794   —   —   —   794  

Foreign currency translation adjustments (4) (17,408 )  —   —   —   (17,408 ) 
Balance, as of March 31, 2017 $ 420,935   $ 111,223   $ 337,707   $ 115,002   $ 984,867  
Additions (1) 75,280   —   —   9,744   85,024  

Divestitures (2) —   (3,475 )  —   —   (3,475 ) 
Purchase accounting adjustments (3) —   —   —   (14 )  (14 ) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments (4) 54,768   —   —   —   54,768  

Balance, as of March 31, 2018 $ 550,983   $ 107,748   $ 337,707   $ 124,732   $ 1,121,170  
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_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

(1) The goodwill generated from the Company's business combinations completed during the fiscal years 2018 and 2017 
are primarily related to value placed on the employee workforce, service offerings and capabilities and expected 
synergies. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes. Refer to the discussion of the Company's business 
acquisitions in note 18. 
 

(2) During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the Company disposed of Wink Labs Inc. ("Wink"), a business within 
the CTG segment, and recorded an aggregate reduction of goodwill of $3.5 million, which is included in the gain on 
sale recorded in other charges, net on the consolidated statement of operations. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2017, the Company disposed of two non-strategic businesses within the IEI and HRS segments, and recorded an 
aggregate reduction of goodwill of $4.4 million, which is included in the loss on sale recorded in other charges, net on 
the consolidated statement of operations. 
 

(3) Includes adjustments based on management's estimates resulting from its review and finalization of the valuation of 
assets and liabilities acquired through certain business combinations completed in a period subsequent to the 
respective acquisition. These adjustments were not individually, nor in the aggregate, significant to the Company. 
 

(4) During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded $54.8 million and $17.4 million, 
respectively, of foreign currency translation adjustments primarily related to the goodwill associated with the 
acquisition of AGM Automotive ("AGM") in fiscal year 2018 and Mirror Controls International ("MCi") in fiscal year 
2016, as the U.S. Dollar fluctuated against foreign currencies.  
 

Other Intangible Assets 

The Company's acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization over their estimated useful lives and are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an intangible asset may not 
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value. The 
Company reviewed the carrying value of its intangible assets as of March 31, 2018 and concluded that such amounts continued 
to be recoverable. 

Intangible assets are comprised of customer-related intangible assets that include contractual agreements and customer 
relationships; and licenses and other intangible assets, that are primarily comprised of licenses and also include patents and 
trademarks, and developed technologies. Generally, both customer-related intangible assets and licenses and other intangible 
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis, over a period of up to ten years. No residual value is estimated for any intangible 
assets. The fair value of the Company's intangible assets purchased through business combinations is determined based on 
management's estimates of cash flow and recoverability. The components of acquired intangible assets are as follows: 
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 As of March 31, 2018  As of March 31, 2017 

 
Gross 

Carrying  
Amount  

Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net 
Carrying  
Amount  

Gross 
Carrying  
Amount  

Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net 
Carrying  
Amount 

 (In thousands) 

Intangible assets:            
Customer-related intangibles $ 306,943   $ (79,051 )  $ 227,892   $ 260,704   $ (105,912 )  $ 154,792  

Licenses and other intangibles 304,007 
 

 (107,466 )  196,541 
 

 283,897 
 

 (76,508 )  207,389 
 

Total $ 610,950   $ (186,517 )  $ 424,433   $ 544,601   $ (182,420 )  $ 362,181  

The gross carrying amounts of intangible assets are removed when fully amortized. During fiscal year 2018, the gross 
carrying amounts of fully amortized intangible assets totaled $38.3 million. During fiscal year 2018, the gross carrying amount 
of intangible assets increased primarily in connection with the Company's acquisitions during the year. Total intangible asset 
amortization expense recognized in operations during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $78.6 million, $81.4 million and 
$66.0 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, the weighted-average remaining useful lives of the Company's intangible 
assets were approximately 7.1 years for customer-related intangibles and approximately 6.1 years for licenses and other 
intangible assets. The estimated future annual amortization expense for acquired intangible assets is as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Amount 

 (In thousands) 

2019 $ 75,319  

2020 68,981  

2021 64,440  

2022 55,301  

2023 46,762  

Thereafter 113,630  

Total amortization expense $ 424,433  

 
We own or license various United States and foreign patents relating to a variety of technologies. For certain of our 

proprietary processes, inventions, and works of authorship, we rely on trade secret or copyright protection. We also maintain 
trademark rights (including registrations) for our corporate name and several other trademarks and service marks that we use in 
our business in the United States and other countries throughout the world. We have implemented appropriate policies and 
procedures (including both technological means and training programs for our employees) to identify and protect our 
intellectual property, as well as that of our customers and suppliers. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying value of our 
intellectual property was not material. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 

All derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. If the derivative instrument is 
designated as a cash flow hedge, effectiveness is tested monthly using a regression analysis of the change in spot currency rates 
and the change in present value of the spot currency rates. The spot currency rates are discounted to present value using 
functional currency Inter-bank Offering Rates over the maximum length of the hedge period. The effective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivative instrument (excluding time value) is recognized in shareholders' equity as a separate 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), and recognized in the consolidated statements of operations 
when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective and excluded portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are 
recognized in earnings immediately. If the derivative instrument is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair 
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value of the derivative instrument and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings in the 
current period. Additional information is included in note 9. 

Other Current Assets 

Other current assets include approximately $445.4 million and $506.5 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively for the deferred purchase price receivable from the Company's Global and North American Asset-Backed 
Securitization programs. See note 11 for additional information. Further, the Company recorded in other current assets, 
approximately $321.1 million of assets, primarily property and equipment and accounts receivable, classified as held for sale. 
See note 18 for additional information. 

Investments 

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Company sold Wink to an unrelated third-party venture backed company in 
exchange for consideration fair valued at $59.0 million. This estimated consideration was based on the value of the acquirer as 
of the most recent third-party funding of which the Company participated. The Company recognized a non-cash gain on sale 
of $38.7 million, which is recorded in other charges (income), net on the condensed consolidated statement of operations in the 
year ended March 31, 2018. As of March 31, 2018, the total investment, including working capital advances, of $76.5 million is 
accounted for as a cost method investment, and is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. 

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Company deconsolidated one of its majority owned subsidiaries, 
following the amendments of certain agreements that resulted in joint control of the board of directors between the Company 
and other non-controlling interest holders. As of March 31, 2018, this subsidiary is accounted for as a cost method investment 
of approximately $124.6 million and is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. See note 6 for additional 
information on the deconsolidation. 

The Company has certain equity investments in, and notes receivable from, non-publicly traded companies which are 
included within other assets. The equity method of accounting is used for investments in common stock or in-substance 
common stock when the Company has the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of the issuer; otherwise the 
cost method is used. Non-majority-owned investments in corporations are accounted for using the equity method when the 
Company has a voting percentage equal to or generally greater than 20% but less than 50%, and for non-majority-owned 
investments in partnerships when generally greater than 5%. The Company monitors these investments for impairment 
indicators and makes appropriate reductions in carrying values as required whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the assets may be impaired. The factors the Company considers in its evaluation of potential impairment of its 
investments, include, but are not limited to a significant deterioration in the earnings performance or business prospects of the 
investee, or factors that raise significant concerns about the investee’s ability to continue as a going concern, such as negative 
cash flows from operation or working capital deficiencies. Fair values of these investments, when required, are estimated using 
unobservable inputs, primarily comparable company multiples and discounted cash flow projections. 

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's equity investments in non-majority owned companies totaled $411.1 
million and $200.1 million, respectively. The equity in the earnings or losses of the Company's equity method investments was 
not material to the consolidated results of operations for any period presented and is included in interest and other, net. 

During fiscal year 2017, the Company formed a joint venture with RIB Software AG, a provider of technology for the 
construction industry. This joint venture will offer a fully integrated enterprise software platform for building and housing 
projects. The Company contributed $60.0 million for a non-controlling interest in this joint venture. This contribution, net of the 
Company's equity in losses, which is immaterial, is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. The cash 
outflows to pay for this investment have been included in cash flows from other investing activities during the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2017. 

Other Current Liabilities 
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Other current liabilities include customer working capital advances of $153.6 million and $231.3 million, customer-
related accruals of $439.0 million and $501.9 million, and deferred revenue of $329.0 million and $280.7 million as of 
March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The customer working capital advances are not interest bearing, do not have fixed 
repayment dates and are generally reduced as the underlying working capital is consumed in production.  

Restructuring Charges 

The Company recognizes restructuring charges related to its plans to close or consolidate excess manufacturing facilities 
and rationalize administrative functions. In connection with these activities, the Company records restructuring charges for 
employee termination costs, long-lived asset impairment and other exit-related costs. 

The recognition of restructuring charges requires the Company to make certain judgments and estimates regarding the 
nature, timing and amount of costs associated with the planned exit activity. To the extent the Company's actual results differ 
from its estimates and assumptions, the Company may be required to revise the estimates of future liabilities, requiring the 
recognition of additional restructuring charges or the reduction of liabilities already recognized. Such changes to previously 
estimated amounts may be material to the consolidated financial statements. At the end of each reporting period, the Company 
evaluates the remaining accrued balances to ensure that no excess accruals are retained and the utilization of the provisions are 
for their intended purpose in accordance with developed restructuring plans. See note 15 for additional information regarding 
restructuring charges. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

In July 2015, the Financial Accounting standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Updates ("ASU") No. 
2015-11 "Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory", to simplify the measurement of inventory, by 
requiring that inventory be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Prior to the issuance of the new guidance, 
inventory was measured at the lower of cost or market. The Company adopted the guidance, prospectively, effective April 1, 
2017 and it did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

 
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16 "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than 

Inventory", intended to improve the accounting for the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other than 
inventory. This guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2019, with early adoption 
permitted in the first interim period of fiscal year 2018. The Company adopted the guidance, on a modified retrospective basis, 
effective April 1, 2017 and it did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

 
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-17 "Consolidation (Topic 810): Interests Held through Related Parties That 

Are under Common Control" to amend the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity that is the single decision maker of 
a variable interest entity ("VIE") should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are under common 
control with the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that VIE. This guidance requires that 
the amendments be applied on a retrospective or modified retrospective basis, and it is effective for the Company beginning in 
the first quarter of fiscal year 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted the guidance, retrospectively, 
effective April 1, 2017 and it did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12 "Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to 
Accounting for Hedging Activities" with the objective of improving the financial reporting of hedging relationships and 
simplifying the application of the hedge accounting guidance in current GAAP. The guidance is effective for the Company 
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020 with early adoption permitted. The Company expects the new guidance will 
have an immaterial impact on its consolidated financial statements, and it intends to adopt the guidance when it becomes 
effective in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020. 
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In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for 

Goodwill Impairment" to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating step 2 from the goodwill 
impairment test. This guidance requires that the change be applied on a prospective basis, and it is effective for the Company 
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2021, with early application permitted. The Company is currently assessing the 
impact of the new guidance and the timing of adoption. 

 
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01 “Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a 

Business” to clarify the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether 
transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses.  This guidance is effective for Flex 
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2019, with early adoption permitted, and it should be applied on a prospective basis 
starting on date of adoption. The Company plans to adopt the guidance effective the first quarter of fiscal year 2019. 
 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15 "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash 
Receipts and Cash Payments (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force)." The ASU is intended to address specific cash 
flow issues with the objective of reducing the existing diversity in practice and provide guidance on how certain cash receipts 
and payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The majority of the guidance in ASU 2016-15 is 
consistent with our current cash flow classification. However, cash receipts on the deferred purchase price as described in note 
11 will be classified as cash flow from investing activities instead of the Company's current presentation as cash flows from 
operations. The Company intends to adopt the guidance when it becomes effective in the first quarter of fiscal year 2019 and 
retrospectively report cash flows from operating and investing activities for all periods presented. While the Company is still 
quantifying the impact of adoption of this standard, it does expect the standard to result in a material increase in cash flows 
from investing activities and corresponding reduction in cash flows from operating activities for all periods presented. 

 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 "Leases (Topic 842)" intended to improve financial reporting on leasing 

transactions. The new lease guidance will require entities that lease assets to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and 
liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. The guidance will also 
enhance existing disclosure requirements relating to those leases. The Company intends to adopt the new lease guidance 
beginning when it becomes effective in the first quarter of fiscal year 2020 using a modified retrospective approach. Upon 
initial evaluation, the Company believes the new guidance will have a material impact on its consolidated balance sheets when 
adopted. 

 
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 "Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and 

Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." This guidance generally requires equity investments, except those 
accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee, to be measured at fair 
value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. This guidance also requires the separate presentation of financial 
assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or in the accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2017; early adoption is permitted, and the guidance must be applied prospectively to equity investments that 
exist as of the adoption date. The Company will adopt this guidance on April 1, 2018 when effective. The adoption of this 
guidance is not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)" which requires an 
entity to recognize revenue relating to contracts with customers that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount reflecting the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for such goods or 
services. In order to meet this requirement, the entity must apply the following steps: (i) identify the contracts with the 
customers; (ii) identify performance obligations in the contracts; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the 



  

FLEX LTD. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

S-22 

transaction price to the performance obligations per the contracts; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 
performance obligation. Additionally, disclosures required for revenue recognition will include qualitative and quantitative 
information about contracts with customers, significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from costs 
to obtain or fulfill a contract. The guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2019. 

The adoption of the new standard will change the timing of revenue recognition for a portion of Flex’s business. Under 
the new standard, revenue for certain of Flex's manufacturing services customer contracts will be recognized earlier than under 
the current accounting rules (where Flex recognizes revenue based on shipping and delivery). 

The new guidance allows for two transition methods in application: retrospective to each prior reporting period presented 
(full retrospective method), or retrospective with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date 
of initial application (modified retrospective method). The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 using the 
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, prior financial statements presented will not be restated. 

Upon adoption of the standard, the Company estimates an adjustment to its beginning accumulated deficit in the range of 
$30 million to $70 million as of April 1, 2018. In addition, the Company estimates reduction in finished good and work-in-
progress inventories in the range of $300 million to $500 million in aggregate. The Company estimates a corresponding 
increase to unbilled receivables of approximately $330 million to $550 million. The Company is continuing to assess the impact 
of adopting the new standard on its consolidated financial statements. The Company is also continuing to adjust its accounting 
policies, operational and financial reporting processes, systems capabilities and relevant internal controls. 

 

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

The Company recognizes manufacturing revenue when it ships goods or the goods are received by its customer, title and 
risk of ownership have passed, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and recoverability is reasonably assured. 
Generally, there are no formal substantive customer acceptance requirements or further obligations related to manufacturing 
services. If such requirements or obligations exist, then the Company recognizes the related revenues at the time when such 
requirements are completed, and the obligations are fulfilled. Some of the Company's customer contracts allow the recovery of 
certain costs related to manufacturing services that are over and above the prices charged for the related products. The 
Company determines the amount of costs that are recoverable based on agreements with those customers. Also, certain 
customer contracts contain commitments and obligations that may result in additional expenses or decreases in revenue. The 
Company accrues for these commitments and obligations based on facts and circumstances including historical practice and 
contractual terms. Please see additional details in the customer contract section below. The Company also makes provisions for 
estimated sales returns at the time revenue is recognized based upon contractual terms and an analysis of historical returns and 
adjustments. Provisions for sales returns were not material to the consolidated financial statements for any of the periods 
presented. 
 

The Company provides a comprehensive suite of services for its customers that range from advanced product design to 
manufacturing and logistics to after-sales services. The Company recognizes service revenue when the services have been 
performed, and the related costs are expensed as incurred. Sales for services were less than 10% of the Company's total sales 
for all periods presented, and accordingly, are included in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company 
recognized research and development costs primarily related to its design and innovations businesses of $78.2 million, $65.6 
million, and $61.0 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Transition to ASC 606 

ASU 2014-09 “Revenue Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” establishes a comprehensive framework for determining 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. Upon adoption 
of the new guidance, effective April 1, 2018 for Flex, the timing of revenue recognition for a portion of the Company’s business 
will change, resulting in the recognition of revenue for certain of the Company’s manufacturing services customer contracts 
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earlier than under the previous recognition rules. Refer to note 2 for further detail about the impact to the Company upon 
adoption. 

Customer Contracts and Related Obligations 

The Company generally enters into master supply agreements (“MSA”) with its customers that provide the framework 
under which business will be conducted. This includes matters such as warranty, indemnification, transfer of title and risk of 
loss, liability for excess and obsolete inventory, pricing formulas, payment terms, etc. On occasion, the level of business under 
those agreements is not guaranteed. In those instances, we bid on a program-by-program basis and typically receive customer 
purchase orders for specific quantities and timing of products. As a result, the Company considers its contract with a customer 
to be the combination of the MSA and the purchase order, or any other similar documents such as a statement of work that 
embody the commitment by the customer. 

 
Certain of the Company’s customer agreements include terms that result in potential price adjustments. These price 

adjustments include, but are not limited to, sharing of cost savings, committed price reductions, material margins earned over 
the period that are contractually restricted to be paid to the customers, rebates, refunds tied to performance metrics such as on-
time delivery, and other periodic pricing resets that may be refundable to customers. The Company accrues for these contractual 
provisions as a reduction of revenues when incurred which generally approximates the same time that revenue for the portion of 
the arrangement that is not subject to such price adjustments is recognized. The Company determines the amounts to be accrued 
based on the amount of potential refund required by the contract, where applicable, historical experience and other surrounding 
facts and circumstances. Often these obligations are settled with the customer in a period after shipment through various 
methods which include reduction of prices in future purchases, issuance of a payment to the customer, or issuance of a credit 
note applied against the customer’s accounts receivable balance. In some instances, the agreement might be silent on the 
settlement mechanism.  Any difference between the amount accrued upon shipment for potential refunds and the actual amount 
agreed to with the customer is recorded as an increase or decrease in revenue. These potential price adjustments are included as 
part of other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet, and disclosed as part of customer related accruals in note 2. 
Refer to note 2 for further details about other current liabilities. 
 

4. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 

Equity Compensation Plans 

Historically, the Company's primary plan used for granting equity compensation awards was the 2010 Equity Incentive 
Plan (the "2010 Plan"). Effective August 15, 2017, awards are granted under the Company's 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (the 
"2017 Plan"), which was approved by the Company's shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, to 
replace the 2010 Plan for further grants. For additional discussion about the 2017 Plan, refer to the Company's Proxy Statement, 
which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 5, 2017. 

During fiscal year 2016, in conjunction with the acquisition of NEXTracker, the Company assumed all of the outstanding, 
unvested share bonus awards and outstanding, unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of NEXTracker, and 
converted all these shares into Flex awards. As a result, the Company now maintains the 2014 NEXTracker Equity Incentive 
Plan (the "NEXTracker Plan"). 

Additionally, during fiscal year 2017, in conjunction with an immaterial acquisition, the Company assumed all of the 
outstanding, unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of the acquiree, and converted all of these shares into Flex 
awards. As a result, the Company now maintains an additional equity compensation plan, the BrightBox Technologies 2013 
Plan (the "BrightBox Plan"). The BrightBox Plan is immaterial to the Company for all periods presented. 

As a result of the deconsolidation of Elementum during fiscal year 2018, the Company no longer grants equity 
compensation awards under the 2013 Elementum Plan. Refer to note 6 for additional information on the deconsolidation. 
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Share-Based Compensation Expense 

The following table summarizes the Company's share-based compensation expense for all Equity Incentive Plans: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Cost of sales $ 19,102   $ 10,023   $ 8,986  

Selling, general and administrative expenses 66,142   72,243   68,594  

Total share-based compensation expense $ 85,244   $ 82,266   $ 77,580  

Cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits (tax benefits related to the excess of proceeds from employee exercises of 
share options over the share-based compensation cost recognized for those options) are classified as operating cash flows. 
During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not recognize any excess tax benefits as an operating cash inflow. 

The 2017 Equity Incentive Plan 

As of March 31, 2018, the Company had approximately 22.2 million shares available for grant under the 2017 Plan. 
Options issued to employees under the 2017 Plan generally vest over four years and expire ten years from the date of grant. 
Options granted to non-employee directors expire five years from the date of grant. 

The exercise price of options granted to employees is determined by the Company's Board of Directors or the 
Compensation Committee and may not be less than the closing price of the Company's ordinary shares on the date of grant. 

As of March 31, 2018, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share options granted to employees 
under the 2017 Plan was not significant and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of 
approximately six months. 

The Company also grants share bonus awards under its equity compensation plan. Share bonus awards are rights to 
acquire a specified number of ordinary shares for no cash consideration in exchange for continued service with the Company. 
Share bonus awards generally vest in installments over a three to five-year period and unvested share bonus awards are 
forfeited upon termination of employment.  

Vesting for certain share bonus awards is contingent upon both service and market conditions. Further, vesting for certain 
share bonus awards granted to certain executive officers is contingent upon meeting certain free cash flow targets. 

As of March 31, 2018, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share bonus awards granted to 
employees was approximately $134.2 million under the 2017 Plan. These costs will be amortized generally on a straight-line 
basis over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.5 years. Approximately $14.2 million of the unrecognized 
compensation cost related to the 2017 Plan is related to share bonus awards granted to certain key employees whereby vesting 
is contingent on meeting a certain market condition. 

Determining Fair Value - Options and share bonus awards 

Valuation and Amortization Method—The Company estimates the fair value of share options granted under the 2017 and 
2010 Plans using the Black-Scholes valuation method and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized on 
a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. The fair market value 
of share bonus awards granted, other than those awards with a market condition, is the closing price of the Company's ordinary 
shares on the date of grant and is generally recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the respective 
vesting period. 
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Expected Term—The Company's expected term used in the Black-Scholes valuation method represents the period that the 
Company's share options are expected to be outstanding and is determined based on historical experience of similar awards, 
giving consideration to the contractual terms of the share options, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee 
behavior as influenced by changes to the terms of its share options. 

Expected Volatility—The Company's expected volatility used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is derived from a 
combination of implied volatility related to publicly traded options to purchase Flex ordinary shares and historical variability in 
the Company's periodic share price. 

Expected Dividend—The Company has never paid dividends on its ordinary shares and accordingly the dividend yield 
percentage is zero for all periods. 

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method on 
the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury constant maturities issued with a term equivalent to the expected term of 
the option. 

There were no options granted under the 2017 and 2010 Plans during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. 

Determining Fair Value - Share bonus awards with service and market conditions 

Valuation and Amortization Method—The Company estimates the fair value of share bonus awards granted under the 
2017 and 2010 Plans whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market conditions using Monte Carlo simulation. This 
fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, which is the service period. 

Expected volatility of Flex—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatility of Flex's 
stock price over a period equal to the service period of the share bonus awards granted. The service period is three years for 
those share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. 

Average peer volatility—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatilities of the 
Standard and Poor's ("S&P") 500 index for the share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. 

Average Peer Correlation—Correlation coefficients were used to model the movement of Flex's stock price relative to the 
S&P 500 index for the share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. 

Expected Dividend and Risk-Free Interest Rate assumptions—Same methodology as discussed above. 

The fair value of the Company's share-bonus awards under the 2017 and 2010 Plans, whereby vesting is contingent on 
meeting certain market conditions, for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 was estimated using the following weighted-average 
assumptions: 

 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

Expected volatility 25.1 %  25.8 %  26.0 % 
Average peer volatility 28.7 %  25.1 %  23.0 % 
Average peer correlation 0.6   0.6   0.6  

Expected dividends 0.0 %  0.0 %  0.0 % 
Risk-free interest rate 1.5 %  0.9 %  1.2 % 

 

Share-Based Awards Activity 
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The following is a summary of option activity for the Company's 2017 and 2010 Plans ("Price" reflects the weighted-
average exercise price): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 2016 

 Options  Price  Options  Price  Options  Price 

Outstanding, beginning of fiscal year 142,327   $ 8.97   2,369,636   $ 8.31   15,992,894   $ 7.81  

Granted —   —   —   —   —   —  

Exercised (125,949 )  8.63   (1,573,356 )  6.89   (10,006,774 )  6.10  

Forfeited (9,500 )  11.55   (653,953 )  12.39   (3,616,484 )  12.23  

Outstanding, end of fiscal year 6,878   $ 9.78   142,327   $ 8.97   2,369,636   $ 8.31  

Options exercisable, end of fiscal year 5,751   $ 9.52   138,950   $ 8.93   2,359,527   $ 8.30  

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the Company's 2010 Plan (calculated as the difference between 
the exercise price of the underlying award and the price of the Company's ordinary shares determined as of the time of option 
exercise for options exercised in-the-money) was $1.1 million, $9.3 million and $55.3 million during fiscal years 2018, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. 

Cash received from option exercises under the 2010 Plan was $1.1 million, $10.9 million and $61.1 million for fiscal 
years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018 the aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding, options vested and expected to vest, and 
options exercisable under the Company's 2017 and 2010 Plans were immaterial. The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as 
the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of the Company's ordinary shares as of 
March 31, 2018 for the immaterial amount of options that were in-the-money at March 31, 2018.  

The following table summarizes the Company's share bonus award activity under the 2017 and 2010 Plans ("Price" 
reflects the weighted-average grant-date fair value): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 2016 

 Shares  Price  Shares  Price  Shares  Price 

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, 
beginning of fiscal year 15,698,582 

 
 $ 12.44 

 
 17,000,076 

 
 $ 10.77 

 
 18,993,252 

 
 $ 9.01 

 

Granted (1) 6,155,761   16.99   8,261,666   13.46   7,619,722   12.23  
Vested (1) (6,473,562 )  12.17   (8,606,246 )  9.44   (8,529,378 )  7.93  
Forfeited (1,488,739 )  13.38   (956,914 )  11.20   (1,083,520 )  9.67  

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, end 
of fiscal year 13,892,042 

 
 $ 14.52 

 
 15,698,582 

 
 $ 12.44 

 
 17,000,076 

 
 $ 10.77 

 

 
(1)  Included in the fiscal years 2018 and 2017 amounts are 0.7 million and 1.7 million of share bonus awards, respectively, representing the number of awards 

achieved above target levels based on the achievement of certain market conditions, as further described in the table below. These awards were issued and 
immediately vested in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying awards.  

Of the 6.2 million unvested share bonus awards granted under the 2017 and 2010 Plans in fiscal year 2018, approximately 
4.7 million are plain-vanilla unvested share bonus awards with no performance or market conditions with an average grant date 
price of $16.57 per share. Further, approximately 0.2 million of these unvested share bonus awards have an average grant date 
price of $16.34 per share and represents the target amount of grants made to certain executive officers whereby vesting is 
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contingent on meeting certain free cash flow targets. These awards cliff vest after three years and will ultimately pay out over a 
range from zero up to a maximum of 0.4 million of the target payment based on a measurement of cumulative three-year 
increase of free cash flow from operations of the Company. Further, 0.6 million of these unvested share bonus awards granted 
in fiscal year 2018 represents the target amount of grants made to certain key employees whereby vesting is contingent on 
certain market conditions. The average grant date fair value of these awards contingent on certain market conditions was 
estimated to be $20.25 per award and was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. Vesting information for these shares are 
further detailed in the table below. Finally, the remaining balance of 0.7 million represents the number of awards achieved 
above target levels, as described in the table above. 

Of the 13.9 million unvested share bonus awards outstanding under the 2017 and 2010 Plans as of the fiscal year ended 
2018, approximately 2.0 million of unvested share bonus awards represents the target amount of grants made to certain key 
employees whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market conditions summarized as follows: 

 

  Targeted 
number of  

awards as of  
March 31, 2018  

(in shares)  

  
Range of shares 

that may be issued (1)  

 
  Average 

grant date  
fair value  

(per share) 

  
   

Assessment dates Year of grant   Minimum  Maximum  
Fiscal 2018  623,620   $ 20.25   —   1,247,240   June 2020 
Fiscal 2017  677,523   $ 17.57   —   1,355,046   June 2019 
Fiscal 2016  648,929   $ 14.96   —   1,297,858   June 2018 
Totals  1,950,072     —   3,900,144    

 
(1)       Vesting ranges from zero to 200% based on measurement of Flex's total shareholder return against the Standard and Poor's ("S&P") 500 Composite 

Index. 

The Company will recognize share-based compensation expense for awards with market conditions regardless of whether 
such awards will ultimately vest. During fiscal year 2018, 1.4 million shares vested in connection with the share bonus awards 
with market conditions granted in fiscal year 2015. 

The total intrinsic value of share bonus awards vested under the Company's 2017 and 2010 Plans was $108.4 million, 
$109.5 million and $103.2 million during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, based on the closing price of the 
Company's ordinary shares on the date vested. 

The 2014 NEXTracker Equity Incentive Plan 

All awards previously granted under the NEXTracker Plan are the result of the Company's conversion of all outstanding, 
unvested shares of NEXTracker into unvested shares of the Company, as part of the acquisition.  During fiscal year 2018, the 
Company modified the vesting conditions of 0.3 million unvested options and 0.5 million share bonus awards under the 
NEXTracker Plan contingent on meeting certain performance targets.  These options and share bonus awards were then re-
granted to vest in installments over a three-year period commencing September 29, 2017.  The Company determined that the 
transaction falls under the accounting for modification of awards, and accordingly adjusted the recognized compensation 
expense with an immaterial impact on the statement of operations for fiscal year 2018. 

Options issued to employees under the NEXTracker Plan generally have a vesting period of two to four years from 
vesting commencement date and expire ten years from the date of grant.  

The exercise price of options granted to employees was determined by the Company based on a conversion rate agreed 
upon in the purchase agreement of NEXTracker. 
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As of March 31, 2018, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share options granted to employees 
under the NEXTracker Plan was $6.3 million and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of 
approximately 2.1 years.  

Share bonus awards issued to employees under the NEXTracker Plan vest in installments over a three to five-year period 
from vesting commencement date, and unvested share bonus awards are forfeited upon termination of employment. Vesting for 
certain of these share bonus awards is contingent on meeting certain performance targets over a three-year period commencing 
September 29, 2017, following the modification of vesting conditions described above. 

As of March 31, 2018, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share bonus awards granted to 
employees under the NEXTracker Plan was approximately $10.5 million and will be amortized generally on a straight-line 
basis over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.5 years.  

Determining Fair Value 

As noted above, the Company re-granted certain shares options under the NEXTracker Plan during fiscal year 2018 after 
modifying the vesting conditions.  The fair value of share options granted under the NEXTracker Plan for fiscal years 2018 and 
2016 was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions: 

 Fiscal Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

Fiscal Year Ended 
March 31, 2016 

Expected term 6.5 years 2.9 years 
Expected volatility 28.8% 28.8% 
Expected dividends 0.0% 0.0% 
Risk-free interest rate 2.1% 0.9% 
Weighted-average fair value $16.29 $7.76 

  

Share-Based Awards Activity 

The following is a summary of option activity for the NEXTracker Plan ("Price" reflects the weighted-average exercise 
price): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 Options  Price  Options  Price  Options  Price 

Outstanding, beginning of fiscal 
year 1,636,016 

 
 $ 3.61 

 
 2,741,854 

 
 $ 3.44 

 
 — 

 
 $ — 

 

Granted 288,386   0.54   —   —   3,205,806   3.28  
Exercised (510,322 )  3.27   (709,845 )  2.24   (237,380 )  0.99  
Forfeited (352,820 )  5.69   (395,993 )  4.64   (226,572 )  3.75  

Outstanding, end of fiscal year 1,061,260   $ 3.55   1,636,016   $ 3.61   2,741,854   $ 3.44  
Options exercisable, end of 
fiscal year 352,829 

  $ 5.11 
  369,015 

  $ 5.00 
  223,869 

  $ 4.95 
 

 

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the NEXTracker plan (calculated as the difference between the 
exercise price of the underlying award and the price of the Company's ordinary shares determined as of the time of option 
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exercise for options exercised in-the-money) was $7.3 million, $8.0 million and 2.3 million as of March 31, 2018, 2017 and 
2016, respectively. 

Cash received from option exercises under the NEXTracker Plan was $1.7 million, $1.6 million and $0.2 million for 
fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018 the aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding, options vested and expected to vest, and 
options exercisable under the Company's NEXTracker Plan, were $13.6 million, $13.6 million, and $4.0 million, respectively. 
The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted 
price of the Company's ordinary shares as of March 31, 2018 for the approximately 1.1 million options under the NEXTracker 
Plan that were in-the-money at March 31, 2018.  

The following table summarizes the Company's share bonus award activity under the NEXTracker Plan ("Price" reflects 
the weighted-average grant-date fair value): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 Shares  Price  Shares  Price  Shares  Price 

Unvested share bonus awards 
outstanding, beginning of fiscal 
year 1,543,437 

 

 $ 10.23 

 

 2,309,096 

 

 $ 10.27 

 

 — 

 

 $ — 

 

Granted 524,978   16.73   —   —   2,393,195   10.27  

Vested (471,831 )  7.63   (705,738 )  10.19   (31,925 )  10.27  

Forfeited (868,934 )  10.18   (59,921 )  10.27   (52,174 )  10.27  

Unvested share bonus awards 
outstanding, end of fiscal year 727,650 

 
 $ 11.85 

 
 1,543,437 

 
 $ 10.23 

 
 2,309,096 

 
 $ 10.27 

 

 

The total intrinsic value of share bonus awards vested under the Company's NEXTracker Plan was $8.0 million and $9.6 
million, during fiscal year 2018 and 2017, respectively, based on the closing price of the Company's ordinary shares on the date 
vested. The total intrinsic value of share bonus awards vested under the Company's NEXTracker Plan was immaterial during 
fiscal year 2016. 

 

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the applicable periods. 

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution from stock options and share bonus awards. The potential 
dilution from stock options exercisable into ordinary share equivalents and share bonus awards was computed using the 
treasury stock method based on the average fair market value of the Company's ordinary shares for the period. 

The following table reflects the basic weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding and diluted weighted-average 
ordinary share equivalents used to calculate basic and diluted income per share: 
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 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands, except 
per share amounts) 

Basic earnings per share:      
Net income $ 428,534   $ 319,564   $ 444,081  

Shares used in computation:      
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding 529,782   540,503   557,667  

Basic earnings per share $ 0.81   $ 0.59   $ 0.80  

      

Diluted earnings per share:      
Net income $ 428,534   $ 319,564   $ 444,081  

Shares used in computation:      
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding 529,782   540,503   557,667  

Weighted-average ordinary share equivalents from stock options and 
awards (1) 6,816 

 
 5,717 

 
 7,202 

 

Weighted-average ordinary shares and ordinary share equivalents 
outstanding 536,598 

 
 546,220 

 
 564,869 

 

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.80   $ 0.59   $ 0.79  

 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

(1) An immaterial amount of options to purchase ordinary shares during fiscal year 2018 were excluded from the 
computation of diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive impact on the weighted average ordinary shares 
equivalents.  Options to purchase ordinary shares of 0.5 million and 2.0 million during fiscal years 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share. 

Share bonus awards of less than 0.1 million during fiscal year 2018 and 2017, respectively, were excluded from the 
computation of diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive impact on the weighted average ordinary shares 
equivalents. There were no anti-dilutive share bonus awards in fiscal year 2016. 

 
6. NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARY ENTITY 

Starting in fiscal year 2014, the Company had a majority owned subsidiary, Elementum SCM (Cayman) Ltd 
("Elementum"), which qualified as a variable interest entity for accounting purposes.  The Company owned a majority of 
Elementum' s outstanding equity (consisting primarily of preferred stock) and as of March 31, 2017, controlled its board of 
directors, which gave the Company the power to direct the activities of Elementum that most significantly impact its economic 
performance.  Accordingly, the Company recognized the carrying value of the noncontrolling interest as a component of total 
shareholders' equity, and the consolidated financial statements included the financial position and results of operations of 
Elementum as of and for the periods ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. 

 
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Company and other minority shareholders of Elementum amended 

certain agreements resulting in joint control of the board of directors between the Company and other non-controlling interest 
holders.  As a result, the Company concluded it is no longer the primary beneficiary of Elementum and accordingly, 
deconsolidated the entity.  The Company no longer recognizes the carrying value of the noncontrolling interest as a component 
of total shareholder’s equity resulting in a reduction of $90.6 million of noncontrolling interest from its consolidated balance 
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sheet upon deconsolidation. Further, the Company derecognized approximately $72.6 million of cash of Elementum as of the 
date of deconsolidation which is reflected as an outflow from investing activities within other investing activities, net in the 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018.  There were no other material impacts to the 
consolidated balance sheet or consolidated cash flows resulting from deconsolidation of the entity.  The noncontrolling interest 
in the operating losses of Elementum prior to deconsolidation is immaterial for all periods presented and is classified as a 
component of interest and other, net, in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. 

 

The carrying amount of the Company’s variable interest in Elementum was approximately $124.6 million as of March 31, 
2018, is accounted for as a cost method investment, and is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.  The value 
of the Company’s variable interest on the date of deconsolidation was based on management’s estimate of the fair value of 
Elementum at that time.  The Company concluded that the market approach was the most appropriate method to determine the 
fair value of the entity on the date of deconsolidation, given that Elementum raised equity funding from third-party investors 
around the same period (i.e., level 2 inputs).  The Company recognized a gain on deconsolidation of approximately $151.6 
million with no related tax impact, which is included in other charges (income), net on the consolidated statement of operations.  
As the Company is not obligated to fund future losses of Elementum, the carrying amount is the Company’s maximum risk of 
loss.  Pro-forma financials have not been presented because the effects were not material to the Company’s consolidated 
financial position and results of operation for all periods presented.  Elementum remains a related party to the Company after 
deconsolidation and transactions between the Company and Elementum during the year ended March 31, 2018 were 
immaterial. 

 

7. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES 

The following table represents supplemental cash flow disclosures and non-cash investing and financing activities: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Net cash paid for:      
Interest $ 152,750   $ 127,346   $ 114,578  

Income taxes 91,846   86,651   105,453  

Non-cash investing and financing activity:      
Unpaid purchases of property and equipment $ 128,044   $ 84,375   $ 93,310  

Customer-related third party banking institution equipment 
financing net settlement — 

 
 90,576 

 
 — 

 

Non-cash investment in Elementum (Note 6) 132,679   —   —  

Non-cash proceeds from sales of Wink (Note 2) 59,000   —   —   
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8. BANK BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Bank borrowings and long-term debt are as follows: 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 

4.625% Notes due February 2020 $ 500,000   $ 500,000  

Term Loan, including current portion, due in installments through November 2021 687,813   700,000  

Term Loan, including current portion, due in installments through June 2022 483,656   502,500  

5.000% Notes due February 2023 500,000   500,000  

4.750% Notes due June 2025 596,387   595,979  

Other 186,601   169,671  

Debt issuance costs (13,815 )  (16,007 ) 
 2,940,642   2,952,143  
Current portion, net of debt issuance costs (43,011 )  (61,534 ) 
Non-current portion $ 2,897,631   $ 2,890,609  

 

The weighted-average interest rates for the Company's long-term debt were 3.9% and 3.5% as of March 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. 

Repayments of the Company's long-term debt are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Amount 

 (In thousands) 
2019 $ 44,015  
2020 542,915  
2021 116,423  
2022 812,500  
2023 839,188  
Thereafter 599,416  

Total $ 2,954,457  

Term Loan due November 2021 

In August 2013, the Company entered into a $600 million term loan agreement due August 2018. In November 2016, the 
Company entered into a new arrangement to extend the maturity date of the agreement from August 30, 2018 to November 30, 
2021, and borrowed an incremental amount of $130 million under this term loan, thereby increasing the total amount under the 
term loan to $700 million. This loan is repayable in quarterly installments of $4.1 million, which commenced October 31, 2017 
and continue through September 30, 2021, with the remaining amount due at maturity. 

Borrowings under this term loan bear interest, at the Company's option, either at (i) LIBOR plus the applicable margin for 
LIBOR loans ranging between 1.125% and 2.125%, based on the Company's credit ratings or (ii) the base rate (the greatest of 
the prime rate in effect on each day as published in The Wall Street Journal, the federal funds rate plus 0.5% and LIBOR for a 
one-month interest period plus 1.00%) plus an applicable margin ranging between 0.125% and 1.125%, based on the 
Company's credit rating. 
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This term loan is unsecured, and contains customary restrictions on the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to (i) 
incur certain debt, (ii) make certain investments, (iii) make certain acquisitions of other entities, (iv) incur liens, (v) dispose of 
assets, (vi) make non-cash distributions to shareholders, and (vii) engage in transactions with affiliates. These covenants are 
subject to a number of exceptions and limitations. This term loan agreement also requires that the Company maintain a 
maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization), and a 
minimum interest coverage ratio, as defined therein, during its term; provided that the requirement to maintain the minimum 
interest coverage ratio may be suspended in certain circumstances. As of March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with 
the covenants under this term loan agreement. 

Term Loan Agreement due June 2022 and Revolving Line of Credit 

In June 2017, the Company entered into a five-year credit facility consisting of a $1.75 billion revolving credit facility 
and a $502.5 million term loan, which is due to mature on June 30, 2022 (the "2022 Credit Facility"). This 2022 Credit Facility 
replaced the Company's $2.1 billion credit facility, which was due to mature in March 2019. The outstanding principal of the 
term loan portion of the 2022 Credit Facility is repayable in quarterly installments of approximately $6.3 million from 
September 30, 2017 through June 30, 2020 and approximately $12.6 million from September 30, 2020 through March 31, 2022 
with the remainder due upon maturity. The Company determined that effectively extending the maturity date of the revolving 
credit and repaying the term loan due March 2019 qualified as a debt modification and consequently all unamortized debt 
issuance costs related to the $2.1 billion credit facility are capitalized and will be amortized over the term of the 2022 Credit 
Facility. 

Borrowings under the 2022 Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, either at (i) the Base Rate, which is 
defined as the greatest of (a) the Administrative Agent’s prime rate, (b) the federal funds effective rate, plus 0.50% and (c) the 
LIBOR (the London Interbank Offered Rate) rate that would be calculated as of each day in respect of a proposed LIBOR loan 
with a one-month interest period, plus 1.0%; plus, in the case of each of clauses (a) through (c), an applicable margin ranging 
from 0.125% to 0.875% per annum, based on the Company’s credit ratings (as determined by Standard & Poor’s Financial 
Services LLC, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Fitch Ratings Inc.) or (ii) LIBOR plus the applicable margin for LIBOR 
loans ranging between 1.125% and 1.875% per annum, based on the Company’s credit ratings. 

The 2022 Credit Facility is unsecured and contains customary restrictions on the ability of the Company and its 
subsidiaries to (i) incur certain debt, (ii) make certain investments, (iii) make certain acquisitions of other entities, (iv) incur 
liens, (v) dispose of assets, (vi) make non-cash distributions to shareholders, and (vii) engage in transactions with affiliates. 
These covenants are subject to a number of significant exceptions and limitations. The 2022 Credit Facility also requires that 
the Company maintain a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization), and a minimum interest coverage ratio during the term of the 2022 Credit Facility. As of March 31, 2018, the 
Company was in compliance with the covenants under the 2022 Credit Facility agreement. 

Notes due February 2020 and February 2023 

In February 2013, the Company issued $500.0 million of 4.625% Notes due February 15, 2020 and $500.0 million of 
5.000% Notes due February 15, 2023 (collectively the "Notes") in a private offering pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S 
under the Securities Act. In July 2013, the Company exchanged these notes for new notes with substantially similar terms and 
completed the registration of these notes with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company received net proceeds of 
approximately $990.6 million from the issuance and used those proceeds, together with $9.4 million of cash on hand, to repay 
$1.0 billion of outstanding borrowings under its previous term loan that was due October 2014. 

Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually, which commenced on August 15, 2013. The Notes are senior unsecured 
obligations of the Company, rank equally with all of the Company's other existing and future senior and unsecured debt 
obligations, and up until June 30, 2017 were guaranteed, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally on an unsecured basis, 
by certain of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries (the "guarantor subsidiaries"). The Company replaced its $2.1 
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billion credit facility, which was due to expire in March 2019 and was guaranteed by the guarantor subsidiaries, with the 2022 
Credit Facility, which is not guaranteed by the guarantor subsidiaries. Effective upon the replacement, all guarantor subsidiaries 
were released from their guarantees under each indenture for the Notes. As a result, the Company will no longer be providing 
supplemental guarantor and non-guarantor consolidating financial statements. 

At any time prior to maturity, the Company may redeem some or all of the Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount of the Notes redeemed, plus an applicable premium accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable 
redemption date. Upon the occurrence of a change of control repurchase event (as defined in the Notes indenture), the Company 
must offer to repurchase the Notes at a repurchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Notes repurchased, plus 
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable repurchase date. 

The indenture governing the Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of the Company and 
certain of the Company's subsidiaries to create liens; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; create, incur, issue, assume or 
guarantee any funded debt; and consolidate or merge with, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of the Company's 
assets to, another person. These covenants are subject to a number of significant limitations and exceptions set forth in the 
indenture. The indenture also provides for customary events of default, including, but not limited to, cross defaults to certain 
specified other debt of the Company and its subsidiaries. In the case of an event of default arising from specified events of 
bankruptcy or insolvency, all outstanding Notes will become due and payable immediately without further action or notice. If 
any other event of default under the indenture occurs or is continuing, the applicable trustee or holders of at least 25% in 
aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding Notes may declare all of the Notes to be due and payable immediately. As of 
March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with the covenants in the indenture governing the Notes. 

Notes due June 2025 

In June 2015, the Company issued $600 million of 4.750% Notes ("2025 Notes") due June 15, 2025 in a private offering 
pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act, at 99.213% of face value, and an effective yield of 
approximately 4.850%. The Company received net proceeds of approximately $595.3 million from the issuance which was 
used for general corporate purposes. During January 2016, the Company exchanged these notes for new notes with substantially 
similar terms and completed the registration of these notes with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

The Company incurred approximately $7.9 million of costs in conjunction with the issuance of the 2025 Notes. The 
issuance costs were capitalized and presented on the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the 2025 
Notes. 

Interest on the 2025 Notes is payable semi-annually, commencing on December 15, 2015. The 2025 Notes are senior 
unsecured obligations of the Company, rank equally with all of the Company's other existing and future senior and unsecured 
debt obligations, and up until June 30, 2017 were guaranteed, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally on an unsecured 
basis, by each of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries (the "guarantor subsidiaries"). The Company replaced its $2.1 
billion credit facility, which was due to expire in March 2019 and was guaranteed by the guarantor subsidiaries, with the 2022 
Credit Facilities, which is not guaranteed by the guarantor subsidiaries. Effective upon the replacement, all guarantor 
subsidiaries were released from their guarantees under the indenture for the 2025 Notes. As a result, the Company will no 
longer be providing supplemental guarantor and non-guarantor consolidating financial statements. 

At any time prior to March 15, 2025, the Company may redeem some or all of the 2025 Notes at a redemption price equal 
to 100% of the principal amount of the 2025 Notes redeemed, plus an applicable premium and accrued and unpaid interest, if 
any, to the applicable redemption date. Upon the occurrence of a change of control repurchase event (as defined in the 2025 
Notes indenture), the Company must offer to repurchase the 2025 Notes at a repurchase price equal to 101% of the principal 
amount of the 2025 Notes repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable repurchase date. 

The indenture governing the 2025 Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of the Company 
and certain of the Company's subsidiaries to create liens; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; create, incur, issue, assume or 
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guarantee any funded debt; and consolidate or merge with, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of the Company's 
assets to, another person, or permit any other person to consolidate, merge, combine or amalgamate with or into the Company. 
These covenants are subject to a number of significant limitations and exceptions set forth in the indenture. The indenture also 
provides for customary events of default, including, but not limited to, cross defaults to certain specified other debt of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. In the case of an event of default arising from specified events of bankruptcy or insolvency, all 
outstanding 2025 Notes will become due and payable immediately without further action or notice. If any other event of default 
under the agreement occurs or is continuing, the applicable trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of 
the then outstanding 2025 Notes may declare all of the 2025 Notes to be due and payable immediately, but upon certain 
conditions such declaration and its consequences may be rescinded and annulled by the holders of a majority in principal 
amount of the 2025 Notes. As of March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with the covenants in the indenture 
governing the 2025 Notes. 

Other Credit Lines 

In January 2017, the Company borrowed €100 million (approximately $123.5 million as of March 31, 2018), under a 5-
year, term-loan agreement due January 2, 2022. Borrowings under this term loan bear interest at EURIBOR minus 0.1% plus 
the applicable margin ranging between 0.40% and 1.35%, based on the Company's credit ratings. The loan is repayable upon 
maturity. 

 
In October 2015, the Company borrowed €50 million (approximately $61.8 million as of March 31, 2018), under a 5-year, 

term-loan agreement due September 30, 2020. Borrowings under this term loan bear interest at EURIBOR plus the applicable 
margin ranging between 0.80% and 2.00%, based on the Company’s credit ratings. The loan is repayable beginning 
December 30, 2016 in quarterly payments of €312,500 through June 30, 2020 with the remainder due upon maturity.  

 
These term loans are unsecured and are guaranteed by the Company. These term loan agreements contain customary 

restrictions on the Company's and its subsidiaries' ability to (i) incur certain debt, (ii) make certain investments, (iii) make 
certain acquisitions of other entities, (iv) incur liens, (v) dispose of assets, (vi) make non-cash distributions to shareholders, and 
(vii) engage in transactions with affiliates. These covenants are subject to a number of exceptions and limitations. These term 
loan agreements also require that the Company maintain a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before 
interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization), and a minimum interest coverage ratio, as defined therein, during their 
terms. As of March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under these term loan agreements. 

As of March 31, 2018, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries had various uncommitted revolving credit facilities, 
lines of credit and other credit facilities in the amount of $256.5 million in the aggregate. There were no borrowings 
outstanding under these facilities as of March 31, 2018 and 2017. These unsecured credit facilities, and lines of credit and other 
credit facilities bear annual interest at the respective country's inter-bank offering rate, plus an applicable margin, and generally 
have maturities that expire on various dates in future fiscal years. 

 

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Foreign Currency Contracts 

The Company transacts business in various foreign countries and is therefore exposed to foreign currency exchange rate 
risk inherent in forecasted sales, cost of sales, and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies. The 
Company has established risk management programs to protect against volatility in the value of non-functional currency 
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and of future cash flows caused by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. 
The Company tries to maintain a partial or fully hedged position for certain transaction exposures, which are primarily, but not 
limited to, revenues, customer and vendor payments and inter-company balances in currencies other than the functional 
currency unit of the operating entity. The Company enters into short-term foreign currency derivatives contracts, including 
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forward, swap, and options contracts to hedge only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities, 
primarily accounts receivable and accounts payable, and cash flows denominated in non-functional currencies. Gains and losses 
on the Company's derivative contracts are designed to offset losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions hedged, 
and accordingly, generally do not subject the Company to risk of significant accounting losses. The Company hedges 
committed exposures and does not engage in speculative transactions. The credit risk of these derivative contracts is minimized 
since the contracts are with large financial institutions and accordingly, fair value adjustments related to the credit risk of the 
counterparty financial institution were not material. 

As of March 31, 2018, the aggregate notional amount of the Company's outstanding foreign currency derivative contracts 
was $7.6 billion as summarized below: 

 Foreign Currency 
Amount  Notional Contract 

Value in USD 
Currency Buy  Sell  Buy  Sell 

 (In thousands) 
Cash Flow Hedges        
CNY 2,472,000   —   $ 392,493   $ —  
EUR 74,696   102,508   92,292   123,347  
HUF 20,482,360   —   80,961   —  
ILS 104,570   17,325   29,853   4,946  
MXN 3,820,600   —   208,688   —  
MYR 235,400   78,000   60,277   19,973  
RON 125,190   —   33,224   —  
SGD 35,250   —   26,908   —  
Other N/A  N/A  49,734   3,225  

     974,430   151,491  

Other Foreign Currency Contracts        
AUD 29,887   39,839   22,925   30,834  
BRL —   706,000   —   211,580  
CAD 306,196   336,629   237,601   261,216  
CHF 13,122   26,611   13,763   27,912  
CNY 2,238,583   —   347,121   —  
EUR 1,190,730   1,442,218   1,469,945   1,780,517  
GBP 38,445   65,222   54,179   91,794  
HUF 106,548,846   116,231,762   421,158   459,432  
INR 4,052,331   747,986   61,992   11,476  
MXN 2,342,814   2,109,080   127,969   115,202  
MYR 844,010   627,500   216,119   160,679  
PLN 99,330   54,465   29,180   16,000  
SEK 144,590   267,169   17,492   32,172  
SGD 73,918   40,994   56,426   31,293  
Other N/A  N/A  89,386   45,739  

     3,165,256   3,275,846  
Total Notional Contract Value in USD     $ 4,139,686   $ 3,427,337  
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As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the fair value of the Company's short-term foreign currency contracts was included in 
other current assets or other current liabilities, as applicable, in the consolidated balance sheets. Certain of these contracts are 
designed to economically hedge the Company's exposure to monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional 
currencies and are not accounted for as hedges under the accounting standards. Accordingly, changes in fair value of these 
instruments are recognized in earnings during the period of change as a component of interest and other, net in the consolidated 
statements of operations. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company also has included net deferred gains and losses, in 
accumulated other comprehensive loss, a component of shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets, relating to 
changes in fair value of its foreign currency contracts that are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Deferred gains totaled $6.6 
million as of March 31, 2018, and are expected to be recognized primarily as a component of cost of sales in the consolidated 
statement of operations over the next twelve-month period. The gains and losses recognized in earnings due to hedge 
ineffectiveness were not material for all fiscal years presented and are included as a component of interest and other, net in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 

The following table presents the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments utilized for foreign currency risk 
management purposes at March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

 Fair Values of Derivative Instruments 

 Asset Derivatives  Liability Derivatives 

   Fair Value    Fair Value 

 Balance Sheet 
Location  March 31, 

 2018  March 31, 
 2017  Balance Sheet 

Location  March 31, 
 2018  March 31, 

 2017 

 (In thousands) 

Derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments            

Foreign currency contracts 
Other current 

assets  $ 19,422 
 
 $ 11,936 

 
 

Other current 
liabilities  $ 7,065 

 
 $ 1,814 

 

Derivatives not 
designated as hedging 
instruments            

Foreign currency contracts 
Other current 

assets  $ 23,912 
 
 $ 10,086 

 
 

Other current 
liabilities  $ 18,246 

 
 $ 9,928 

 

The Company has financial instruments subject to master netting arrangements, which provides for the net settlement of 
all contracts with the counterparty upon maturity. The Company does not offset fair value amounts for assets and liabilities 
recognized for derivative instruments under these arrangements, and as such, the asset and liability balances presented in the 
table above reflect the gross amounts of derivatives in the consolidated balance sheets. The impact of netting derivative assets 
and liabilities is not material to the Company's financial position for any of the periods presented. 

 

10. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss by component, net of tax, during fiscal years ended March 31, 
2018, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 
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 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2018 

 

Unrealized loss on 
derivative  

instruments and  
other  

Foreign currency 
translation  

adjustments  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Beginning balance $ (32,426 )  $ (95,717 )  $ (128,143 ) 
Other comprehensive gain before reclassifications 15,667   46,022   61,689  

Net gains reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss (18,987 )  (404 )  (19,391 ) 
Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) (3,320 )  45,618   42,298  

Ending balance $ (35,746 )  $ (50,099 )  $ (85,845 ) 

 
 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

Unrealized loss on 
derivative  

instruments and  
other  

Foreign currency 
translation  

adjustments  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Beginning balance $ (41,522 )  $ (94,393 )  $ (135,915 ) 
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications 6,925   (1,198 )  5,727  

Net (gains) losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 
loss 2,171 

 
 (126 )  2,045 

 

Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) 9,096   (1,324 )  7,772  

Ending balance $ (32,426 )  $ (95,717 )  $ (128,143 ) 
 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016 

 

Unrealized loss on 
derivative  

instruments and  
other  

Foreign currency 
translation  

adjustments  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Beginning balance $ (68,266 )  $ (112,239 )  $ (180,505 ) 
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (2,199 )  (3,145 )  (5,344 ) 
Net (gains) losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 
loss 28,943 

 
 20,991 

 
 49,934 

 

Net current-period other comprehensive gain 26,744   17,846   44,590  

Ending balance $ (41,522 )  $ (94,393 )  $ (135,915 ) 

Net gains reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss during fiscal year 2018 relating to derivative 
instruments and other includes $20.8 million attributable to the Company's cash flow hedge instruments which were recognized 
as a component of cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations. 

Net (gains) losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss were immaterial during fiscal year 2017. 

During fiscal year 2016, the Company recognized a loss of $26.8 million in connection with the disposition of a non-
strategic Western European manufacturing facility, which included a $25.3 million cumulative foreign currency translation loss 
offset by the release of certain immaterial cumulative foreign currency translation gains, which were reclassified from 
accumulated other comprehensive loss during the period and included in other charges (income), net in consolidated statement 
of operations. 
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11. TRADE RECEIVABLES SECURITIZATION 

The Company sells trade receivables under two asset-backed securitization programs and an accounts receivable factoring 
program. 

Asset-Backed Securitization Programs 

The Company continuously sells designated pools of trade receivables under its Global Asset-Backed Securitization 
Agreement (the "Global Program") and its North American Asset-Backed Securitization Agreement (the "North American 
Program," collectively, the "ABS Programs") to affiliated special purpose entities, each of which in turn sells 100% of the 
receivables to unaffiliated financial institutions. These programs allow the operating subsidiaries to receive a cash payment and 
a deferred purchase price receivable for sold receivables. Following the transfer of the receivables to the special purpose 
entities, the transferred receivables are isolated from the Company and its affiliates, and upon the sale of the receivables from 
the special purpose entities to the unaffiliated financial institutions, effective control of the transferred receivables is passed to 
the unaffiliated financial institutions, which has the right to pledge or sell the receivables. Although the special purpose entities 
are consolidated by the Company, they are separate corporate entities and their assets are available first to satisfy the claims of 
their creditors. The investment limits set by the financial institutions are $950.0 million for the Global Program, of which 
$775.0 million is committed and $175.0 million is uncommitted, and $250.0 million for the North American Program, of which 
$210.0 million is committed and $40.0 million is uncommitted. Both programs require a minimum level of deferred purchase 
price receivable to be retained by the Company in connection with the sales. 

The Company services, administers and collects the receivables on behalf of the special purpose entities and receives a 
servicing fee of 0.1% to 0.5% of serviced receivables per annum. Servicing fees recognized during the fiscal years ended 
March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were not material and are included in interest and other, net within the consolidated statements 
of operations. As the Company estimates the fee it receives in return for its obligation to service these receivables is at fair 
value, no servicing assets or liabilities are recognized. 

The Company's deferred purchase price receivables relating to its asset-backed securitization program are recorded 
initially at fair value based on a discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable inputs (i.e., level 3 inputs), which are 
primarily risk free interest rates adjusted for the credit quality of the underlying creditor. Due to its high credit quality and short 
term maturity, the fair value approximates carrying value. Significant increases in either of the major unobservable inputs 
(credit spread, risk free interest rate) in isolation would result in lower fair value estimates, however the impact is not material. 
The interrelationship between these inputs is also insignificant. 

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the accounts receivable balances that were sold under the ABS Programs were removed 
from the consolidated balance sheets and the net cash proceeds received by the Company during fiscal years ended March 31, 
2018, 2017 and 2016 were included as cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. 

As of March 31, 2018, approximately $1.5 billion of accounts receivable had been sold to the special purpose entities 
under the ABS Programs for which the Company had received net cash proceeds of $1.1 billion and deferred purchase price 
receivables of $445.4 million. As of March 31, 2017, approximately $1.5 billion of accounts receivable had been sold to the 
special purpose entities for which the Company had received net cash proceeds of $1.0 billion and deferred purchase price 
receivables of $506.5 million. The portion of the purchase price for the receivables which is not paid by the unaffiliated 
financial institutions in cash is a deferred purchase price receivable, which is paid to the special purpose entity as payments on 
the receivables are collected from account debtors. The deferred purchase price receivable represents a beneficial interest in the 
transferred financial assets and is recognized at fair value as part of the sale transaction. The deferred purchase price receivables 
are included in other current assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, and were carried at the expected recovery amount of the 
related receivables. The difference between the carrying amount of the receivables sold under these programs and the sum of 
the cash and fair value of the deferred purchase price receivables received at time of transfer is recognized as a loss on sale of 
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the related receivables and recorded in interest and other, net in the consolidated statements of operations. Refer to note 17 for 
more details. 

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, cash flows from sales of receivables under the ABS Programs 
consisted of approximately $9.4 billion, $8.6 billion and $7.0 billion, respectively, for transfers of receivables, and 
approximately $3.2 billion, $4.0 billion and $4.2 billion, respectively, for collections on deferred purchase price receivables. 
The Company corrected previously reported disclosures related to these cash flows from sales of receivable under the ABS 
Programs by increasing by $2.9 billion and $1.8 billion, and the collections on deferred purchase price receivables by 
increasing such amounts by $0.7 billion and $0.6 billion for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The 
Company determined that these revisions are not material. The Company's cash flows from transfer of receivables consist 
primarily of proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving-period transfers. Cash flows from new transfer were not 
significant for all periods presented.  

Trade Accounts Receivable Sale Programs 

The Company also sold accounts receivables to certain third-party banking institutions. The outstanding balance of 
receivables sold and not yet collected on accounts where the Company has continuing involvement was approximately $286.4 
million and $225.2 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. For the years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, 
total accounts receivables sold to certain third party banking institutions was approximately $1.5 billion, $1.3 billion and $2.3 
billion, respectively. The receivables that were sold were removed from the consolidated balance sheets and were reflected as 
cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. 

 

12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and 
liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market 
in which it would transact, and it considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. 
The accounting guidance for fair value establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence 
surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within the fair value hierarchy is 
based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

        Level 1—Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

The Company has deferred compensation plans for its officers and certain other employees. Amounts deferred under 
the plans are invested in hypothetical investments selected by the participant or the participant's investment manager. The 
Company's deferred compensation plan assets are included in other noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheets and 
include investments in equity securities that are valued using active market prices. 

        Level 2—Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets) such as cash 
and cash equivalents and money market funds; or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be 
derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data. 

The Company values foreign exchange forward contracts using level 2 observable inputs which primarily consist of 
an income approach based on the present value of the forward rate less the contract rate multiplied by the notional amount. 
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The Company's cash equivalents are comprised of bank deposits and money market funds, which are valued using 
level 2 inputs, such as interest rates and maturity periods. Due to their short-term nature, their carrying amount approximates 
fair value. 

The Company's deferred compensation plan assets also include money market funds, mutual funds, corporate and 
government bonds and certain convertible securities that are valued using prices obtained from various pricing sources. These 
sources price these investments using certain market indices and the performance of these investments in relation to these 
indices. As a result, the Company has classified these investments as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. 

        Level 3—Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are 
significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities. 

The Company has accrued for contingent consideration in connection with its business acquisitions as applicable, which is 
measured at fair value based on certain internal models and unobservable inputs. 

The significant inputs in the fair value measurement not supported by market activity included the Company's probability 
assessments of expected future revenue during the earn-out period and associated volatility, appropriately discounted 
considering the uncertainties associated with the obligation, and calculated in accordance with the terms of the merger 
agreement. Significant decreases in expected revenue during the earn-out period, or significant increases in the discount rate or 
volatility in isolation would result in lower fair value estimates. The interrelationship between these inputs is not considered 
significant. 

The following table summarizes the activities related to contingent consideration: 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 
Beginning balance $ 22,426   $ 73,423  

Additions to accrual —   —  
Payments and settlements (17,109 )  (44,912 ) 
Fair value adjustments (5,317 )  (6,085 ) 

Ending balance $ —   $ 22,426  

 
In connection with the acquisition of NEXTracker, Inc. in fiscal year 2016, the Company had an obligation to pay 

additional cash consideration to the former shareholders contingent upon NEXTracker, Inc.'s achievement of revenue targets 
during the two years after acquisition (ending on September 30, 2017). During fiscal year 2018, the Company paid $17.1 
million of the total contingent consideration following the second year's targets achievement in accordance with the terms of the 
merger agreement. The payment of the contingent consideration is included in other financing activities, net, in the consolidated 
statements of cash flows. 

There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy during fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The following table presents the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2018 and 2017: 
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 Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2018 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Assets:        
Money market funds and time deposits (Note 2) $ —   $ 452,622   $ —   $ 452,622  

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note 9) —   43,334   —   43,334  

Deferred compensation plan assets:        
Mutual funds, money market accounts and equity 
securities 7,196 

 
 67,532 

 
 — 

 
 74,728 

 

Liabilities:        
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note 9) $ —   $ (25,311 )  $ —   $ (25,311 ) 

 

 Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2017 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Assets:        
Money market funds and time deposits (Note 2) $ —   $ 1,066,841   $ —   $ 1,066,841  

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note 9) —   22,022   —   22,022  

Deferred compensation plan assets:        
Mutual funds, money market accounts and equity 
securities 7,062 

 
 52,680 

 
 — 

 
 59,742 

 

Liabilities:        
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note 9) $ —   $ (11,742 )  $ —   $ (11,742 ) 

Contingent consideration in connection with acquisitions — 
 
 — 

 
 (22,426 )  (22,426 )  

 

Other financial instruments 

The following table presents the Company's liabilities not carried at fair value as of March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

 As of March 31, 2018  As of March 31, 2017   

 Carrying 
Amount  Fair 

Value  Carrying 
Amount  Fair 

Value  Fair Value 
Hierarchy 

 (In thousands)  (In thousands)   
4.625% Notes due February 2020 $ 500,000   $ 513,596   $ 500,000   $ 526,255   Level 1 
Term Loan, including current portion, due in 
installments through November 2021 687,813 

 
 689,966 

 
 700,000 

 
 699,566 

 
 Level 1 

Term Loan, including current portion, due in 
installments through June 2022 (1) 483,656 

 
 485,470 

 
 502,500 

 
 503,756 

 
 Level 1 

5.000% Notes due February 2023 500,000   525,292   500,000   534,820   Level 1 
4.750% Notes due June 2025 596,387   627,407   595,979   633,114   Level 1 
Euro Term Loan due September 2020 59,443   59,443   53,075   53,075   Level 1 
Euro Term Loan due January 2022 123,518   123,518   107,357   107,357   Level 1 

Total $ 2,950,817   $ 3,024,692   $ 2,958,911   $ 3,057,943    
 



  

FLEX LTD. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

S-43 

(1)    In June 2017, the Company entered into a new agreement that effectively extended the maturity date of the loan from 
March 31, 2019 to June 30, 2022. Refer to note 8 for further details of the arrangement. 

The Term Loans due November 2021 and June 2022, and the Notes due February 2020, February 2023 and June 2025 are 
valued based on broker trading prices in active markets. 

The Company values its Euro Term Loans due September 2020 and January 2022 based on the current market rate, and as 
of March 31, 2018, the carrying amounts approximate fair values.  
 
 

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments 

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, the gross carrying amount and associated accumulated depreciation of the Company's 
property and equipment financed under capital leases, and the related obligations was not material. The Company also leases 
certain of its facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. These operating leases expire in various years 
through 2035 and require the following minimum lease payments: 

Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Operating Lease 

 (In thousands) 

2019 $ 119,008  

2020 97,476  

2021 66,713  

2022 54,497  

2023 46,861  

Thereafter 178,089  

Total minimum lease payments $ 562,644  

 

Total rent expense amounted to $140.3 million, $124.7 million and $124.2 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

Litigation and other legal matters 

In connection with the matters described below, the Company has accrued for loss contingencies where it believes that 
losses are probable and estimable. The Company does not believe that the amounts accrued are material. Although it is 
reasonably possible that actual losses could be in excess of the Company’s accrual, the Company is unable to estimate a 
reasonably possible loss or range of loss in excess of its accrual, except as discussed below, due to various reasons, including, 
among others, that: (i) the proceedings are in early stages or no claims has been asserted, (ii) specific damages have not been 
sought in all of these matters, (iii) damages, if asserted, are considered unsupported and/or exaggerated, (iv) there is uncertainty 
as to the outcome of pending appeals, motions, or settlements, (v) there are significant factual issues to be resolved, and/or (vi) 
there are novel legal issues or unsettled legal theories presented. Any such excess loss could have a material adverse effect on 
the Company’s results of operations or cash flows for a particular period or on the Company’s financial condition. 

In addition, the Company provides design and engineering services to its customers and also designs and makes its own 
products. As a consequence of these activities, its customers are requiring the Company to take responsibility for intellectual 
property to a greater extent than in its manufacturing and assembly businesses. Although the Company believes that its 
intellectual property assets and licenses are sufficient for the operation of its business as it currently conduct it, from time to 
time third parties do assert patent infringement claims against the Company or its customers. If and when third parties make 
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assertions regarding the ownership or right to use intellectual property, the Company could be required to either enter into 
licensing arrangements or to resolve the issue through litigation. Such license rights might not be available to the Company on 
commercially acceptable terms, if at all, and any such litigation might not be resolved in its favor. Additionally, litigation could 
be lengthy and costly and could materially harm the Company's financial condition regardless of the outcome. The Company 
also could be required to incur substantial costs to redesign a product or re-perform design services. 

From time to time, the Company enters into IP licenses (e.g., patent licenses and software licenses) with third parties 
which obligate the Company to report covered behavior to the licensor and pay license fees to the licensor for certain activities 
or products, or that enable our use of third party technologies. The Company may also decline to enter into licenses for 
intellectual property that it does not think is useful for or used in its operations, or for which its customers or suppliers have 
licenses or have assumed responsibility. Given the diverse and varied nature of its business and the location of its business 
around the world, certain activities the Company performs, such as providing assembly services in China and India, may fall 
outside the scope of those licenses or may not be subject to the applicable intellectual property rights. The Company's licensors 
may disagree and claim royalties are owed for such activities. In addition, the basis (e.g. base price) for any royalty amounts 
owed are audited by licensors and may be challenged.  Some of these disagreements, may lead to claims and litigation that 
might not be resolved in the Company's favor. Additionally, litigation could be lengthy and costly and could materially harm the 
Company's financial condition regardless of the outcome. In March 2018, the Company received an inquiry from a licensor 
referencing a patent license agreement, and requesting information relating to royalties for products that it assembles for a 
customer in China. If any of these inquiries result in a claim, the Company intends to contest and defend against any such claim 
vigorously. If a claim is asserted and the Company is unsuccessful in its defense, a material loss is reasonably possible. The 
Company cannot predict or estimate an amount or reasonable range of outcomes with respect to the matter. 

On May 8, 2018, a putative class action was filed in the Northern District of California against the Company and certain 
officers alleging violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Rule 10b-5, promulgated 
thereunder, alleging misstatements and/or omissions in certain of the Company’s financial results, press releases and SEC 
filings made during the putative class period of January 26, 2017 through April 26, 2018. The deadline for applications for 
appointment as lead plaintiff is July 9, 2018. 

On April 21, 2016, SunEdison, Inc. (together with certain of its subsidiaries, "SunEdison") filed for protection under 
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Company recognized a bad debt 
reserve charge of $61.0 million associated with its outstanding SunEdison receivables and accepted return of previously 
shipped inventory of approximately $90.0 million. SunEdison stated in schedules filed with the Bankruptcy Court that, within 
the 90 days preceding SunEdison's bankruptcy filing, the Company received approximately $98.6 million of inventory and cash 
transfers of $69.2 million, which in aggregate represents the Company's estimate of the maximum reasonably possible 
contingent loss. On April 15, 2018, a subsidiary of the Company together with its subsidiaries and affiliates, entered into a 
tolling agreement with the trustee of the SunEdison Litigation Trust to toll any applicable statute of limitations or other time-
related defense that might exist in regards to any potential claims that either party might be able to assert against the other for a 
period that will end at the earlier to occur of: (a) 60 days after a party provides written notice of termination; (b) six years from 
the effective date of April 15, 2018; or (c) such other date as the parties may agree in writing. No preference claims have been 
asserted against the Company and consideration has been given to the related contingencies based on the facts currently known. 
The Company has a number of affirmative and direct defenses to any potential claims for recovery and intends to vigorously 
defend any such claim, if asserted. 

One of the Company's Brazilian subsidiaries has received related assessments for certain sales and import taxes. There are 
six tax assessments totaling 346 million Brazilian reals (approximately USD $104 million based on the exchange rate as of 
March 31, 2018). The assessments are in various stages of the review process at the administrative level and no tax proceeding 
has been finalized yet. The Company believes there is no legal basis for these assessments and has meritorious defenses and 
will continue to vigorously oppose all of these assessments, as well as any future assessments. The Company does not expect 
final judicial determination on any of these claims for several years. 
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In addition to the matters discussed above, from time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and 
litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company defends itself vigorously against any such claims. Although 
the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, management expects that any losses that are probable or reasonably 
possible of being incurred as a result of these matters, which are in excess of amounts already accrued in the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheets, would not be material to the financial statements as a whole. 

 

14. INCOME TAXES 

The domestic (Singapore) and foreign components of income before income taxes were comprised of the following: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 
Domestic $ 323,522   $ 435,709   $ 199,283  
Foreign 197,371   (64,861 )  255,392  

Total $ 520,893   $ 370,848   $ 454,675  

 

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 
Current:      

Domestic $ 2,894   $ 1,037   $ 56  
Foreign 50,889   71,773   74,706  

 53,783   72,810   74,762  
Deferred:      

Domestic 422   350   3,779  
Foreign 38,154   (21,876 )  (67,947 ) 

 38,576   (21,526 )  (64,168 ) 
Provision for income taxes $ 92,359   $ 51,284   $ 10,594  
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The domestic statutory income tax rate was approximately 17.0% in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. The reconciliation 
of the income tax expense expected based on domestic statutory income tax rates to the expense for income taxes included in 
the consolidated statements of operations is as follows: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Income taxes based on domestic statutory rates $ 88,552   $ 63,044   $ 77,295  

Effect of tax rate differential (244,128 )  (85,132 )  (62,072 ) 
Change in liability for uncertain tax positions 22,180   684   (13,724 ) 
Change in valuation allowance 297,330   78,728   1,049  

Recognition of prior year taxes recoverable (53,757 )  —   —  

Other (17,818 )  (6,040 )  8,046  

Provision for income taxes $ 92,359   $ 51,284   $ 10,594  

 

A number of countries in which the Company is located allow for tax holidays or provide other tax incentives to attract 
and retain business. In general, these holidays were secured based on the nature, size and location of the Company’s operations. 
The aggregate dollar effect on the Company’s income resulting from tax holidays and tax incentives to attract and retain 
business for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $21.7 million, $15.5 million and $6.6 million, 
respectively. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the effect on basic and diluted earnings per share was $0.04 and $0.04 
respectively, and the effect on basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.03 and $0.03 during fiscal year 2017, and $0.01 and 
$0.01 during fiscal year 2016, respectively. Unless extended or otherwise renegotiated, the Company's existing holidays will 
expire in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2019 through fiscal year 2027. 

We provide a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets that in our estimation are not more likely than not to be 
realized. During fiscal year 2018, 2017, and 2016 we released valuation allowances totaling $1.3 million, $39.6 million and 
$63.3 million, respectively.  For fiscal year 2018, these valuation allowance releases were primarily related to our operations in 
Ireland, Mexico and Taiwan as these amounts were deemed to be more likely than not to be realized due to the sustained 
profitability during the past three fiscal years as well as continued forecasted profitability of those subsidiaries. However, these 
valuation allowance releases were offset primarily by current period valuation allowance additions due to increased deferred tax 
assets as a result of current period losses in legal entities with existing full valuation allowance positions. For fiscal years 2018, 
2017 and 2016, the offsetting amounts totaled $(65.9) million, $103.9 million and $64.3 million, respectively.  Included in these 
offsets for fiscal year 2018, the Company released $705.3 million of valuation allowance to account for the reduced deferred 
tax asset as a result of the lower US corporate income tax rate which became effective January 1, 2018. In addition, due to 
changes with respect to the jurisdiction’s tax position during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the Company established a 
valuation allowance of $364.5 million for a Brazilian subsidiary which did not previously have a valuation allowance recorded. 

During fiscal year 2018, the Company recognized an income tax receivable of $53.7 million for prior period taxes paid by 
one of its Brazilian subsidiaries which was deemed recoverable during the period due to a favorable change in tax law whereby 
certain incentives are no longer includable in taxable income.  

Under its territorial tax system, Singapore generally does not tax foreign sourced income until repatriated to Singapore.  
The Company has included the effects of Singapore's territorial tax system in the rate differential line above. The tax effect of 
foreign income not repatriated to Singapore for the fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $65.8 million, $67.9 million and 
$36.6 million, respectively. 

Impact of the U.S. Tax Reform 
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On December 22, 2017, the U.S. President signed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Act”) into law. Effective January 1, 
2018, among other changes, the Act reduces the U.S. federal corporate tax rate to 21 percent, provides for a deemed repatriation 
and taxation at reduced rates of certain non-US subsidiaries owned by U.S. companies’ historical earnings (a “transition tax”), 
and establishes new mechanisms to tax such earnings going forward. Similar to other large multinational companies with 
complex tax structures, the Act has wide ranging implications for Flex. However, the impact on Flex's financial statements for 
the twelve-month periods ended March 31, 2018 is immaterial, primarily because the Company has a full valuation allowance 
on deferred tax assets in the U.S., which results in there being no U.S. deferred tax assets or liabilities recorded on the balance 
sheet that need to be remeasured at the new 21% rate. Further, the Company expects that the new transition tax will be offset by 
foreign tax credits or net operating loss carryforwards, and thus will not result in any incremental taxes payable.  The Company 
will continue to analyze the effects of the Act on its financial statements and operations.  Any additional impacts from the 
enactment of the Act will be recorded as they are identified during the measurement period provided for in Staff Bulletin 118. 

The components of deferred income taxes are as follows: 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Fixed assets $ (33,056 )  $ (40,324 ) 
Intangible assets (80,565 )  (76,432 ) 
Others (12,544 )  (20,702 ) 
Total deferred tax liabilities (126,165 )  (137,458 ) 

Deferred tax assets:    
Fixed assets 65,155   57,869  

Intangible assets 11,237   3,153  

Deferred compensation 13,475   19,335  

Inventory valuation 6,952   8,489  

Provision for doubtful accounts 3,073   2,911  

Net operating loss and other carryforwards 2,133,097   2,369,405  

Others 236,916   266,367  

Total deferred tax assets 2,469,905   2,727,529  
Valuation allowances (2,259,956 )  (2,442,105 ) 

Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 209,949   285,424  

Net deferred tax asset $ 83,784   $ 147,966  

The net deferred tax asset is classified as follows:    
Long-term asset $ 165,319   $ 223,285  

Long-term liability (81,535 )  (75,319 ) 
Total $ 83,784   $ 147,966  

 

Utilization of the Company's deferred tax assets is limited by the future earnings of the Company in the tax jurisdictions 
in which such deferred assets arose. As a result, management is uncertain as to when or whether these operations will generate 
sufficient profit to realize any benefit from the deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance provides a reserve against deferred 
tax assets that are not more likely than not to be realized by the Company. However, management has determined that it is more 
likely than not that the Company will realize certain of these benefits and, accordingly, has recognized a deferred tax asset from 
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these benefits. The change in valuation allowance is net of certain increases and decreases to prior year losses and other 
carryforwards that have no current impact on the tax provision. 

The Company has recorded deferred tax assets of approximately $2.2 billion related to tax losses and other carryforwards 
against which the Company has recorded a valuation allowance for all but $81.3 million of the deferred tax assets. These tax 
losses and other carryforwards will expire at various dates as follows:  

Expiration dates of deferred tax assets related to operating losses and other carryforwards  
 (In thousands) 

2019 - 2024 $ 513,828  
2025 - 2030 614,307  

2031 and post 178,484  

Indefinite 852,455  

 $ 2,159,074  

The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced or increased in the near-term if facts, 
including the amount of taxable income or the mix of taxable income between subsidiaries, differ from management’s 
estimates. 

The Company does not provide for income taxes on approximately $1.6 billion of undistributed earnings of its 
subsidiaries which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested outside of Singapore as management has plans for the use of 
such earnings to fund certain activities outside of Singapore. Determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax 
liability on these undistributed earnings is not practicable. As of March 31, 2018, we have provided for earnings in foreign 
subsidiaries that are not considered to be indefinitely reinvested and therefore subject to withholding taxes on $23.1 million of 
undistributed foreign earnings, recording a deferred tax liability of approximately $1.7 million thereon. 

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year Ended 

March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 

Balance, beginning of fiscal year $ 203,323   $ 212,326  

Additions based on tax position related to the current year 24,415   29,007  

Additions for tax positions of prior years 5,926   9,728  

Reductions for tax positions of prior years (11,936 )  (22,065 ) 
Reductions related to lapse of applicable statute of limitations (9,029 )  (13,390 ) 
Settlements —   (3,684 ) 
Impact from foreign exchange rates fluctuation 14,891   (8,599 ) 

Balance, end of fiscal year $ 227,590   $ 203,323  

The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits are subject to change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the 
expiration of certain statutes of limitations and as audits are settled. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the 
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by an estimated range of an additional $11 million to $41 million 
within the next twelve months primarily due to potential settlements of various audits and the expiration of certain statutes of 
limitations.   

The Company and its subsidiaries file federal, state, and local income tax returns in multiple jurisdictions around world. 
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2007. 
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Of the $227.6 million of unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2018, $210.7 million will affect the annual effective tax 
rate if the benefits are eventually recognized. The amount that doesn’t impact the ETR relates to positions that would be settled 
with a tax loss carryforward previously subject to a valuation allowance. 

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits within the Company’s tax 
expense. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized interest and penalty of 
approximately ($3.3) million and ($1.6) million and $(2.4) million, respectively. The Company had approximately $16.2 
million, $12.9 million and $14.6 million accrued for the payment of interest and penalties as of the fiscal years ended March 31, 
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

15. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES 

Fiscal Year 2018 

During fiscal year 2018, the Company initiated targeted restructuring activities focused on optimizing our cost structure in 
lower growth areas and, more importantly, streamlining certain corporate and segment functions. Restructuring charges are 
recorded based upon employee termination dates, site closure and consolidation plans generally in conjunction with an overall 
corporate initiative to drive cost reduction and realign the Company's global footprint. The Company recognized approximately 
$78.6 million of cash charges predominantly related to related to employee severance costs and $12.1 million of non-cash 
charges for asset impairment and other exit charges under the above plan. Of these total charges, approximately $66.8 million 
was recognized in cost of sales. Employee severance costs were associated with the terminations of 6,203 identified employees. 
The identified employee terminations by reportable geographic region amounted to approximately 5,336, 741 and 126 for the 
Americas, Asia and Europe, respectively. A majority of the fiscal year 2018 restructuring activities were completed as of March 
31, 2018. 
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Restructuring charges are not included in segment income, as disclosed further in note 20. 

The components of the restructuring charges by geographic region incurred in fiscal year 2018 are as follows: 

 Second Quarter  Fourth Quarter  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Americas:      
Severance $ 6,031   $ 36,973   $ 43,004  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment —   9,417   9,417  

Other Exit Costs —   11,835   11,835  

Total 6,031   58,225   64,256  

Asia:      
Severance 1,950   14,590   16,540  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment —   —   —  

Other Exit Costs —   —   —  

Total 1,950   14,590   16,540  

Europe:      
Severance —   9,895   9,895  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment —   —   —  

Other Exit Costs —   —   —  

Total —   9,895   9,895  

Total      
Severance 7,981   61,458   69,439  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment —   9,417   9,417  

Other Exit Costs —   11,835   11,835  

Total restructuring charges $ 7,981   $ 82,710   $ 90,691  

 
Fiscal Year 2017 

During fiscal year 2017, the Company initiated a restructuring plan to accelerate its ability to support more Sketch-to-
Scaletm efforts across the Company and reposition away from historical legacy programs and structures through rationalizing its 
current footprint at existing sites and at corporate SG&A functions. The Company recognized restructuring charges of 
approximately $49.4 million primarily for employee termination costs under the above plan. Of these total charges, 
approximately $38.8 million was recognized in cost of sales. Employee severance costs were associated with the terminations 
of 4,311 identified employees. The identified employee terminations by reportable geographic region amounted to 
approximately 2,229, 1,988 and 94 for Asia, the Americas and Europe, respectively. All fiscal year 2017 restructuring activities 
were completed as of March 31, 2017. There were no material restructuring activities during fiscal year 2016. 
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The components of the restructuring charges by geographic region incurred in fiscal year 2017 were as follows: 

 Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Americas:        
Severance $ 10,822   $ 6,263   $ 7,623   $ 24,708  

Contractual obligations —   489   3,353   3,842  

Total 10,822   6,752   10,976   28,550  

Asia:        
Severance 263   9,701   5,110   15,074  

Contractual obligations —   —   —   —  

Total 263   9,701   5,110   15,074  

Europe:        
Severance 454   968   1,049   2,471  

Contractual obligations —   —   3,300   3,300  

Total 454   968   4,349   5,771  

Total        
Severance 11,539   16,932   13,782   42,253  

Contractual obligations —   489   6,653   7,142  

Total restructuring charges $ 11,539   $ 17,421   $ 20,435   $ 49,395  
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The following table summarizes the provisions, respective payments, and remaining accrued balance as of March 31, 
2018 for charges incurred in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 and prior periods: 

 Severance  
Long-Lived 

Asset  
Impairment  

Other 
Exit Costs  Total 

  
Balance as of April 1, 2015 13,363   —   1,694   15,057  

Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2016 
and prior (1,458 )  — 

 
 (359 )  (1,817 ) 

Balance as of March 31, 2016 11,905   —   1,335   13,240  
Provision for charges incurred in fiscal year 2017 42,253   —   7,142   49,395  

Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2017 (25,894 )  —   —   (25,894 ) 
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2016 
and prior (11,905 )  — 

 
 (1,335 )  (13,240 ) 

Balance as of March 31, 2017 16,359   —   7,142   23,501  
Provision for charges incurred in fiscal year 2018 69,439   9,417   11,835   90,691  

Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2017 
and prior (13,237 )  — 

 
 (3,671 )  (16,908 ) 

Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2018 (24,555 )  —   —   (24,555 ) 
Non-cash charges incurred in fiscal year 2018 —   (9,417 )  (1,968 )  (11,385 ) 
Balance as of March 31, 2018 48,006   —   13,338   61,344  
Less: Current portion (classified as other current 
liabilities) 48,006 

 
 — 

 
 13,338 

 
 61,344 

 

Accrued restructuring costs, net of current portion 
(classified as other liabilities) $ — 

 
 $ — 

 
 $ — 

 
 $ — 

 

 

16. OTHER CHARGES (INCOME), NET 

The fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 includes a $151.6 million gain from the deconsolidation of Elementum, and a 
$38.7 million gain from the sale of Wink. See note 6 for additional information on the deconsolidation of Elementum and note 2 
for additional information on the sale of Wink. The above gains are partially offset by $21.9 million of impairment recognized 
during fiscal year 2018 for certain non-core investments. No other components of other charges and income, net incurred during 
fiscal year 2018 were material. 

The fiscal year ended March 31, 2017 includes a $7.4 million loss attributable to a non-strategic facility sold during the 
second quarter of fiscal year 2017. No other components of other charges and income, net incurred during fiscal year 2017 were 
material. 

During fiscal year 2016, the Company incurred net losses of $47.7 million primarily due to a $26.8 million loss on the 
disposition of a non-strategic Western European manufacturing facility, which included a non-cash foreign currency translation 
loss of $25.3 million, and a $21.8 million loss from the impairment of a non-core investment offset by immaterial currency 
translation gains. 

 

17. INTEREST AND OTHER, NET 
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For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized interest income of $18.8 million, 
$12.1 million and $12.3 million. 

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized interest expense of $123.1 million, 
$108.0 million and $98.0 million, respectively, on its debt obligations outstanding during the period. 

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized gains on foreign exchange 
transactions of $15.2 million, $16.5 million and $24.4 million, respectively. 

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized $25.0 million, $15.3 million and 
$11.0 million of expense related to its ABS and AR Sales Programs. 

 

18. BUSINESS AND ASSET ACQUISITIONS & DIVESTITURES 

In March 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with a certain Chinese manufacturing company, to divest its 
China-based Multek operations, for proceeds of approximately $273 million, net of cash.  The planned divestiture does not 
qualify as discontinued operations, but certain Multek assets and liabilities meet the definition of held for sale as of March 31, 
2018. Accordingly, approximately $321.1 million of assets, primarily property and equipment and accounts receivable, were 
classified as held for sale and included in other current assets, and approximately $144.1 million of liabilities, primarily 
accounts payables, were classified as held for sale and included in other current liabilities as of March 31, 2018 in the 
consolidated balance sheet. The Company expects to recognize an immaterial gain on the divestiture upon closing which is 
expected in the second quarter of fiscal year 2019, subject to customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals. 

The business and asset acquisitions described below were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and 
accordingly, the fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses were included in the Company's 
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. The Company has not finalized the allocation of the 
consideration for certain of its recently completed acquisitions and completes these allocations in less than one year of the 
respective acquisition dates. 

Fiscal 2018 Business and asset acquisitions 

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the Company completed two acquisitions that were not individually, nor in 
the aggregate, significant to the consolidated financial position, results of operation and cash flows of the Company. 

In April 2017, the Company completed its acquisition of AGM, which expanded its capabilities in the automotive market, 
and is included within the HRS segment. The Company paid $213.7 million, net of cash acquired. 

Additionally, in September 2017, the Company acquired a power modules business, which expanded its capabilities 
within the CEC segment. The Company paid $54.7 million, net of cash acquired. 

A summary of the allocation of the total purchase consideration is presented as follows (in thousands): 

  
Purchase 

Consideration  
Net Tangible Assets 

Acquired  
Purchased Intangible 

Assets  Goodwill 

AGM  $ 213,718   $ 56,438   $ 82,000   $ 75,280  
Power Modules Business  54,659   11,615   33,300   9,744  

The intangibles of AGM comprised solely of customer relationships, will amortize over a weighted-average estimated 
useful life of 10 years. The intangibles of the power modules business, comprised of $16.0 million of customer relationships 
and $17.3 million of licenses and other intangibles, will amortize over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 10 years and 
8 years, respectively. 
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The results of operations of the acquisitions were included in the Company’s consolidated financial results beginning on 
the respective acquisition dates, and the total amount of net income and revenue, collectively, were immaterial to the 
Company's consolidated financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. Pro-forma results of operations for the 
acquisitions completed in fiscal year 2018 have not been presented because the effects, individually and in aggregate, were not 
material to the Company’s consolidated financial results for all periods presented. 

Fiscal 2017 Business and asset acquisitions 

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the Company completed four acquisitions that were not individually, nor in 
the aggregate, significant to the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company. Most 
notable is the Company’s acquisition of two manufacturing and development facilities from Bose Corporation (“Bose”), a 
global leader in audio systems. The acquisition expanded the Company’s capabilities in the audio market and is included in the 
CTG segment. The other acquired businesses strengthen the Company's capabilities in the communications market and energy 
market within the CEC and IEI segments, respectively. At the acquisition dates, the Company paid a total of $189.1 million, net 
of cash acquired, of which $161.7 million, net of $18.0 million of cash acquired is related to the Bose acquisition which is 
included in cash from investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. The Company acquired primarily $73.1 
million of inventory, $60.8 million of property and equipment, and recorded goodwill of $63.8 million and intangible assets of 
$47.4 million principally related to the Bose acquisition. The intangibles will amortize over a weighted-average estimated 
useful life of 6.5 years. In connection with these acquisitions, the Company assumed $63.3 million in other liabilities including 
additional consideration of $28.0 million which was paid in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017 and included in other 
financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Further, the equity incentive plan of one of the acquirees was 
assumed as part of the acquisition. 

The results of operations for each of the acquisitions completed in fiscal year 2017, including the Bose acquisition, were 
included in the Company’s consolidated financial results beginning on the date of each acquisition, and the total amount of net 
income and revenue of the acquisitions, collectively, were immaterial to the Company's consolidated financial results for the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2017. Pro-forma results of operations for the acquisitions completed in fiscal year 2017 were not 
presented because the effects, individually and in the aggregate, were not material to the Company’s consolidated financial 
results for all periods presented. 

Fiscal 2017 Divestitures 

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the Company disposed of two non-strategic businesses within the HRS and 
IEI segments. The Company received $30.7 million of proceeds, net of an immaterial amount of cash held in one of the 
divested businesses. The property and equipment and various other assets sold, and liabilities transferred were not material to 
the Company's consolidated financial results. The loss on disposition was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial 
results, and was included in other charges, net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the fiscal year 2017. 

Fiscal 2016 Business acquisitions 

Acquisition of Mirror Controls International 

In June 2015, the Company completed its acquisition of 100% of the outstanding share capital of MCi, and paid 
approximately $555.2 million, net of $27.7 million of cash acquired. This acquisition expanded the Company's capabilities in 
the automotive market, and was included in the HRS segment. The allocation of the purchase price to the tangible and 
identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was based on their estimated fair values as of the date of 
acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
was allocated to goodwill. 

The intangible assets of $236.8 million is comprised of customer relationships of $75.5 million and licenses and other 
intangible assets of $161.3 million. Customer relationships and licenses and other intangibles are each amortized over a 
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weighted-average estimated useful life of 10 years. In addition to net working capital, the Company acquired $38.8 million of 
machinery and equipment and assumed $61.5 million of other liabilities primarily comprised of deferred tax liabilities. The 
Company incurred $6.6 million in acquisition-related costs related to the acquisition of MCi during fiscal year 2016. 

Acquisition of a facility from Alcatel-Lucent 

In July 2015, the Company acquired an optical transport facility from Alcatel-Lucent for approximately $67.5 million, 
which expanded its capabilities in the telecom market and was included in the CEC segment. The Company acquired 
primarily $55.1 million of inventory and $10.0 million of property and equipment primarily comprised of a building and land, 
and recorded goodwill and intangible assets for a customer relationship of $3.6 million and $2.1 million, respectively, and 
assumed $3.3 million in other net liabilities in connection with this acquisition. The customer relationship intangible will 
amortize over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 5 years. 

Acquisition of NEXTracker 

In September 2015, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding share capital of NEXTracker, a provider of smart 
solar tracking solutions. The initial cash consideration was approximately $240.8 million, net of $13.2 million of cash acquired, 
with an additional $81.0 million of estimated potential contingent consideration, for a total purchase consideration of $321.8 
million. At the date of the acquisition, the maximum possible contingent consideration under the agreement was $97.2 
million based upon the achievement of future revenue performance targets. The Company also acquired NEXTracker’s equity 
incentive plan. The financial results of NEXTracker were included in the IEI segment. The allocation of the purchase price to 
the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was based on their estimated fair values as of the 
date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed was allocated to goodwill. 

The intangible assets of $108.7 million is comprised of customer-related intangibles of $47.3 million and licenses and 
other intangible assets of $61.4 million. Customer-related intangibles are amortized over a weighted-average estimated useful 
life of 4 years while licenses and other intangibles are amortized over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 6 years. 

Other business acquisitions 

Additionally, during fiscal year 2016, the Company completed eight acquisitions that were not individually, nor in the 
aggregate, significant to the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company. Four of the 
acquired businesses expanded the Company’s capabilities in the medical devices market, particularly precision plastics and 
molding within the HRS segment, two of them strengthened capabilities in the consumer electronics market within the CTG 
segment, one strengthened the capabilities in the communications market within the CEC segment, and the 
last one strengthened capabilities in the household industrial and lifestyle market within the IEI segment. The Company 
paid $53.3 million, net of $3.7 million of cash held by the targets. The Company acquired $14.4 million of property and 
equipment, assumed liabilities of $17.7 million and recorded goodwill and intangibles of $57.4 million. These intangibles will 
amortize over a weighted-average estimated useful life of 4 years. 

The results of operations for all of the acquisitions completed in fiscal year 2016 were included in the Company’s 
consolidated financial results beginning on the date of each acquisition.  The total amount of net income for all of the 
acquisitions completed in fiscal year 2016, collectively, was $41.4 million. The total amount of revenue of these acquisitions, 
collectively, was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial results for the fiscal year 2016.  

On a pro-forma basis, and assuming the fiscal year 2016 acquisitions occurred on the first day of the prior period, or April 
1, 2014, the Company's net income would have been estimated to be $410.1 million for the fiscal year 2016. The estimated pro-
forma net income did not include the $43.0 million tax benefit for the release of the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 
primarily relating to the NEXTracker acquisition, recognized in fiscal year 2016, to promote comparability. Pro-forma revenue 
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for the acquisitions in fiscal year 2016 were not presented because the effect, collectively, was not material to the Company’s 
consolidated revenues for fiscal year 2016. 

The Company continues to evaluate certain assets and liabilities related to its acquisition of the power module business 
completed during fiscal year 2018. Additional information, which existed as of the acquisition date, may become known to the 
Company during the remainder of the measurement period, a period not to exceed 12 months from the acquisition date. 
Changes to amounts recorded as assets or liabilities, as a result of such additional information, may result in a corresponding 
adjustment to goodwill. 

 

19. SHARE REPURCHASE PLAN 

During fiscal year 2018, the Company repurchased approximately 10.8 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of 
approximately $180.0 million under two separate repurchase plans as further discussed below. 

During the first and second quarters of fiscal year 2018, the Company repurchased the entire remaining amount, or 
approximately 5.5 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of approximately $90.1 million, under the share repurchase 
plan that was approved by the Company's Board of Directors on August 24, 2016 and the Company's shareholders at the 2016 
Annual General Meeting. The Company retired all of these shares. 

Under the Company’s current share repurchase program, the Board of Directors authorized repurchases of its outstanding 
ordinary shares for up to $500 million in accordance with the share repurchase mandate approved by the Company’s 
shareholders at the date of the most recent Annual General Meeting held on August 15, 2017. During fiscal year 2018, the 
Company repurchased approximately 5.3 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of approximately $89.9 million under 
this plan, and retired all of these shares. As of March 31, 2018, shares in the aggregate amount of $410.1 million were available 
to be repurchased under the current plan. 

 

20. SEGMENT REPORTING 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available that 
is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), or a decision making group, in deciding how to 
allocate resources and in assessing performance. Resource allocation decisions and the Company's performance are assessed by 
its Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"), with support from his direct staff who oversee certain operations of the business, 
collectively identified as the CODM or the decision making group. 

The Company has four reportable segments: HRS, CTG, IEI, and CEC. These segments represent components of the 
Company for which separate financial information is available that is utilized on a regular basis by the CODM. These segments 
are determined based on several factors, including the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, 
customer base, delivery channels and similar economic characteristics. Refer to note 1 for a description of the various product 
categories manufactured under each of these segments. 

An operating segment's performance is evaluated based on its pre-tax operating contribution, or segment income. 
Segment income is defined as net sales less cost of sales, and segment selling, general and administrative expenses, and does 
not include amortization of intangibles, stock-based compensation, distressed customer charges, contingencies and other, 
restructuring charges, other charges (income), net and interest and other, net. 
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Selected financial information by segment is as follows: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Net sales:      
Communications & Enterprise Compute $ 7,729,350   $ 8,383,420   $ 8,841,642  

Consumer Technologies Group 6,969,821   6,362,338   6,997,526  

Industrial & Emerging Industries 5,972,496   4,967,738   4,680,718  

High Reliability Solutions 4,769,464   4,149,438   3,898,999  

 $ 25,441,131   $ 23,862,934   $ 24,418,885  

Segment income and reconciliation of income before tax:      
Communications & Enterprise Compute $ 186,335   $ 229,332   $ 265,076  

Consumer Technologies Group 111,629   179,910   163,677  

Industrial & Emerging Industries 235,422   179,749   157,588  

High Reliability Solutions 380,878   334,108   294,635  

Corporate and Other (127,810 )  (107,850 )  (89,219 ) 
Total income 786,454   815,249   791,757  

Reconciling items:      
Intangible amortization 78,640   81,396   65,965  

Stock-based compensation 85,244   82,266   77,580  

Distressed customers asset impairments (1) 6,251   92,915   61,006  

Restructuring charges (2) 90,691   49,395   —  

Contingencies and other (3) 51,631   17,704   —  

Other charges (income), net (169,719 )  21,193   47,738  

Interest and other, net 122,823   99,532   84,793  

Income before income taxes $ 520,893   $ 370,848   $ 454,675  

Corporate and other primarily includes corporate services costs that are not included in the CODM's assessment of the 
performance of each of the identified reporting segments. 

(1) During fiscal year 2016, the Company accepted return of previously shipped inventory from a former customer, 
SunEdison, Inc. ("SunEdison"), of approximately $90 million. On April 21, 2016, SunEdison filed a petition for 
reorganization under bankruptcy law, and as a result, the Company recognized a bad debt reserve of $61 million as of 
March 31, 2016, associated with its outstanding SunEdison receivables. 

During fiscal year 2017, prices for solar panel modules declined significantly. The Company determined that certain 
solar panel inventory on hand at the end of the fiscal year 2017 was not fully recoverable and recorded a charge of $60 
million to reduce the carrying costs to market in fiscal year 2017. The Company also recognized a $16 
million impairment charge for solar module equipment and $17 million primarily related to negative margin sales and 
other associated direct costs. The total charge of $93 million is included in cost of sales for fiscal year 2017 but is 
excluded from segment results above. 
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(2) The Company initiated restructuring plans in fiscal years 2018 and 2017 and incurred charges primarily for employee 
terminations costs, as well as other asset impairments. These charges are split between cost of sales and selling, 
general and administration expenses on the Company's consolidated statement of operations, and are excluded from 
the measurement of the Company's operating segment's performance. Refer to note 15 for more details about our 
restructuring charges. 

(3) During fiscal year 2018, the Company incurred charges in connection with the matters described in note 13 for certain 
loss contingencies where it believes that losses are probable and estimable; coupled with various other charges 
predominately related to damages incurred from a typhoon that impacted one of its China facilities. Additionally, 
certain assets impairments were recorded during both fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Property and equipment on a segment basis is not disclosed as it is not separately identified and is not internally reported 
by segment to the Company's CODM. During fiscal year 2018, 2017 and 2016, depreciation expense included in the segments' 
measure of operating performance above is as follows: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Depreciation expense      
Communications & Enterprise Compute $ 118,150   $ 133,057   $ 117,710  

Consumer Technologies Group 110,276   110,379   123,139  

Industrial & Emerging Industries 75,366   70,814   72,415  

High Reliability Solutions 105,065   88,604   80,935  

Corporate and Other 25,575   29,384   31,530  

Total depreciation expense $ 434,432   $ 432,238   $ 425,729  

Geographic information is as follows: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

 (In thousands) 

Net sales:            
Asia $ 11,210,793   44 %  $ 10,962,075   46 %  $ 11,788,992   48 % 
Americas 9,880,626   39 %  8,582,849   36 %  8,347,514   34 % 
Europe 4,349,712   17 %  4,318,010   18 %  4,282,379   18 % 

 $ 25,441,131     $ 23,862,934     $ 24,418,885    

Revenues are attributable to the country in which the product is manufactured or service is provided. 

During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, net sales generated from Singapore, the principal country of domicile, were 
approximately $686.9 million, $595.3 million and $519.1 million, respectively. 

During fiscal year 2018, China, Mexico, the United States and Brazil accounted for approximately 29%, 17%, 11% and 
10% of consolidated net sales, respectively. No other country accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal year 2018. 

During fiscal year 2017, China, Mexico, the United States and Malaysia accounted for approximately 30%, 17%, 11% 
and 10% of consolidated net sales, respectively. No other country accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal year 2017. 
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During fiscal year 2016, China, Mexico, and the United States accounted for approximately 35%, 15% and 11% of 
consolidated net sales, respectively. No other country accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal year 2016. 

 As of March 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (In thousands) 

Property and equipment, net:        
Asia $ 747,314   33 %  $ 960,290   41 % 
Americas 1,012,188   45 %  939,888   41 % 
Europe 480,004   22 %  416,848   18 % 

 $ 2,239,506     $ 2,317,026    
 

As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, property and equipment, net held in Singapore were approximately $12.6 million and 
$13.2 million, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018, Mexico, China and the United States accounted for approximately 26%, 22% and 14%, 
respectively, of property and equipment, net. No other country accounted for more than 10% of property and equipment, net as 
of March 31, 2018. The decrease in China's property and equipment is primarily driven by assets related to the Company's 
China-based Multek operations, which were classified as held for sale, as further described in note 18. 

As of March 31, 2017, China, Mexico and the United States accounted for approximately 31%, 23% and 13%, 
respectively, of property and equipment, net. No other country accounted for more than 10% of property and equipment, net as 
of March 31, 2017. 
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The Company's third fiscal quarter ends on December 31, and the fourth fiscal quarter and year ends on March 31 of each 
year. The first fiscal quarters of 2018 and 2017 ended on June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, respectively, and the second fiscal 
quarters of 2018 and 2017, ended on September 29, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively. 

The following table contains unaudited quarterly financial data for fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2018  Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 First  Second  Third  Fourth (2)  First  Second (3)  Third  Fourth 

                
Net sales $ 6,008,272   $ 6,270,420   $ 6,751,552   $ 6,410,887   $ 5,876,813   $ 6,008,525   $ 6,114,999   $ 5,862,597  
Gross profit 406,932   393,325   446,328   349,297   405,995   313,691   416,455   384,804  
Net income (loss) (1) 124,710   205,086   118,333   (19,595 )  105,729   (2,508 )  129,469   86,874  
Earnings (losses) per 
share (4):                

Net income:                
Basic $ 0.24   $ 0.39   $ 0.22   $ (0.04 )  $ 0.19   $ 0.00   $ 0.24   $ 0.16  
Diluted $ 0.23   $ 0.38   $ 0.22   $ (0.04 )  $ 0.19   $ 0.00   $ 0.24   $ 0.16  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
(1) Net income for the first quarter of fiscal year 2018 was affected by a $38.7 million gain recognized for the disposition of Wink. Refer to note 2 for 

additional information. Net income for the second quarter of fiscal year 2018 was affected by $151.6 million non-cash gain as a result of the 
deconsolidation of our investment in Elementum. Refer to note 6 for further details on the deconsolidation. 
 

(2) The Company recorded restructuring charges during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2018. The Company classified approximately $58.9 million of 
these charges as a component of cost of sales and approximately $23.8 million of these charges as a component of selling, general and administrative 
expenses. Refer to note 15 for additional information on these charges. 
 

(3) Gross profit and net income for the second quarter of fiscal year 2017 was affected by $92.9 million of SunEdison bankruptcy related charges, as 
further described in note 2. 
 

Earnings per share are computed independently for each quarter presented; therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share may not equal the total earnings 
per share amounts for the fiscal year.



 

S-61 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
FLEX LTD. (PARENT COMPANY) 

      
BALANCE SHEETS 

    
   As of March 31 
   2018  2017 

   
(In thousands, except share 

amounts) 
    

ASSETS 
Current assets:    
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 330,116   $ 561,555  

 Due from subsidiaries 11,689,816   10,951,993  

 Other current assets 641   683  

  Total current assets 12,020,573   11,514,231  
Investment in subsidiaries 5,579,587   3,071,296  

Due from subsidiaries 822,422   2,151,429  

Other assets 218,408   68,384  

 Total assets 18,640,990   16,805,340  

      
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Current liabilities:    
 Current portion of long-term debt $ 40,446   $ 56,177  

 Due to subsidiaries 12,775,253   11,282,477  

 Other current liabilities 21,920   23,851  

  Total current liabilities 12,837,619   11,362,505  
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,713,878   2,726,597  

Due to subsidiaries 11,755   11,756  

Other liabilities 59,165   59,949  

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)    
Shareholders' equity:    

 

Ordinary shares, no par value; 578,317,848 and 581,534,129 issued, 
and 528,078,493 and 531,294,774 outstanding as of March 31, 2018 
and 2017, respectively 6,636,747 

 

 6,733,539 

 

 
Treasury stock, at cost; 50,239,355 shares as of March 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively (388,215 )  (388,215 ) 

 Accumulated deficit (3,144,114 )  (3,572,648 ) 
 Accumulated other comprehensive loss (85,845 )  (128,143 ) 
  Total shareholders’ equity 3,018,573   2,644,533  

  Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 18,640,990   16,805,340  
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1.  ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY 
 

Flex Ltd. (the “Parent”), Registration Number 199002645H, was incorporated in the Republic of Singapore in May 
1990. The Parent's operations have expanded over the years through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions. 
The Parent is a globally-recognized, provider of Sketch-to-Scaletm services - innovative design, engineering, 
manufacturing, and supply chain services and solutions - from conceptual sketch to full-scale production. The Parent 
designs, builds, ships and services complete packaged consumer and industrial products, from athletic shoes to 
electronics, for companies of all sizes in various industries and end-markets, through its activities in the following 
segments: 

•  Communications & Enterprise Compute ("CEC"), which includes telecom business of radio access base 
stations, remote radio heads, and small cells for wireless infrastructure; networking business which 
includes optical, routing, broadcasting, and switching products for the data and video networks; server and 
storage platforms for both enterprise and cloud-based deployments; next generation storage and security 
appliance products; and rack level solutions, converged infrastructure and software-defined product  
solutions; 

•  Consumer Technologies Group ("CTG"), which includes consumer-related businesses in connected living, 
wearables, gaming, augmented and virtual reality, fashion and apparel, and mobile devices; and including 
various supply chain solutions for notebook personal computers, tablets, and printers; 

•  Industrial and Emerging Industries ("IEI"), which is comprised of energy including advanced metering 
infrastructure, energy storage, smart lighting, electric vehicle infrastructure, smart solar energy, 
semiconductor and capital equipment, office solutions, industrial, home and lifestyle, industrial automation, 
and kiosks; and 

•  High Reliability Solutions ("HRS"), which is comprised of health solutions business, including consumer 
health, digital health, disposables, precision plastics, drug delivery, diagnostics, life sciences and imaging 
equipment; automotive business, including vehicle electrification, connectivity, autonomous vehicles, and 
clean technologies. 

 
2.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Amounts included in the financial statements are expressed in U.S. dollars unless otherwise designated. 

 
     The accompanying supplementary balance sheets comprise solely the standalone accounts of Flex Ltd., the Parent 
company. These balance sheets are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), other than as noted in the paragraph entitled “Investment in and Due from/Due to 
Subsidiaries.” 
 

Use of Estimates 
 

     The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (“U.S. GAAP” or “GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things: tax expense; fair values of financial instruments 
including deferred compensation plan assets and derivative instruments; contingencies; and the fair values of stock options 
and share bonus awards granted under the Parent’s stock-based compensation plans. Actual results may differ from 
previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to the consolidated financial statements. Estimates and 
assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the period they occur. 
 

Translation of Foreign Currencies 
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     The functional currency of the Parent is the U.S. dollar, with the exception of its Cayman branch, which is measured 
in Euro. Accordingly, the financial position and results of operations of the Cayman branch are measured using the Euro 
as the functional currency and all assets and liabilities are translated into the reporting currency, which is the U.S. dollars 
at current exchange rates as of the applicable balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average 
exchange rates prevailing during the period. Cumulative gains and losses from the translation of the branch’s financial 
statements are reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. 
 
     Additionally, the Parent’s Bermuda and Cayman branches enter into certain transactions with related companies, 
including short-term contractual obligations and long-term loans. Certain of these obligations and loans are denominated 
in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily Chinese Renminbi, the Euro, Japanese yen and Swedish krona. All 
contractual obligations are translated into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates as of the applicable balance sheet date 
and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the revaluation relating to short-term contractual 
obligations are recognized in the statement of operations and foreign exchange gains and losses relating to long-term 
loans are reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
     All highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from original dates of purchase are carried at 
cost, which approximates fair market value, and are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of cash deposited in bank accounts and money market funds. 
 

Investment in and Due from/Due to Subsidiaries 
 

Investment in subsidiaries is accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the Parent’s investment in 
subsidiaries is reported as a separate line on the Parent’s balance sheet. U.S. GAAP requires that these investments be 
consolidated rather than reported using the equity method. 
 

The Parent also has amounts due from and to subsidiaries that are unsecured, and certain obligations have interest 
rates ranging from 0.2% to 8.5% per annum.  The Parent uses the investment in subsidiaries and due from/due to 
subsidiaries accounts to manage liquidity and capital resources for the Company in a tax effective manner. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

 
Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Parent to concentrations of credit risk, are primarily cash and cash 

equivalents, investments and derivative instruments. 
 

The Parent maintains cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions that management believes to be of 
high credit quality. These financial institutions are located in many different locations throughout the world. The 
Parent’s investment portfolio consists of short term bank deposits and money market accounts. 
 

The amount subject to credit risk related to derivative instruments is generally limited to the amount, if any, by which 
a counterparty’s obligations exceed the obligations of the Parent with that counterparty. To manage counterparty risk, the 
Parent limits its derivative transactions to those with recognized financial institutions. 
 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 
 

All derivative instruments are recognized on the Parent's balance sheets at fair value. If the derivative instrument is 
designated as a cash flow hedge, effectiveness is tested monthly using a regression analysis of the change in the spot 
currency rates and the change in the present value of the spot currency rates. The spot currency rates are discounted to 
present value using functional currency Inter-bank Offering Rates over the maximum length of the hedge period. The 
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument (excluding time value) is recognized in 
shareholders’ equity as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), and recognized in the 
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consolidated statements of operations when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective and excluded portions of changes in 
the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings immediately. If the derivative instrument is designated as a fair 
value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk 
are recognized in earnings in the current period. 

 
Other Intangible Assets 
 

The Parent's acquired intangible assets are generally subject to amortization over their estimated useful lives and are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an intangible 
asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its 
fair value. The Parent reviewed the carrying value of its intangible assets as of March 31, 2018 and concluded that such 
amounts continued to be recoverable. 

 
The Parent's intangible assets comprised of customer-related intangible assets, that include contractual agreements and 

customer relationships; and licenses and other intangible assets, that are primarily comprised of licenses and also includes 
patents and trademarks, and developed technologies. Generally, both customer-related intangible assets and licenses and 
other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis, over a period of up to ten years. No residual value is estimated 
for any intangible assets. The fair value of the Parent's intangible assets purchased through business combinations is 
determined based on management's estimates of cash flow and recoverability. During fiscal year 2018, the gross carrying 
amount of intangible assets increased by approximately $20.5 million in connection with the acquisition of a certain power 
modules business by a subsidiary of the Parent, which is included in other assets on the Parent's balance sheet. 

 
Investments 

The Parent has certain equity investments in, and notes receivable from, non-publicly traded companies which are 
included within other assets. The equity method of accounting is used when the Parent has the ability to significantly 
influence the operating decisions of the issuer; otherwise the cost method is used. Non-majority-owned investments in 
corporations are accounted for using the equity method when the Parent has a voting percentage equal to or generally greater 
than 20% but less than 50%, and for non-majority-owned investments in partnerships when generally greater than 5%. The 
Parent monitors these investments for impairment indicators and makes appropriate reductions in carrying values as required. 
Fair values of these investments, when required, are estimated using unobservable inputs, primarily comparable company 
multiples and discounted cash flow projections. 

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Parent deconsolidated one of its subsidiary, Elementum SCM 
(Cayman) Ltd ("Elementum"), following the amendments of certain agreements that resulted in joint control of the board of 
directors between the Parent and other non-controlling interest holders. As of March 31, 2018, Elementum is accounted for as 
a cost method investment of approximately $124.6 million and is included in other assets on the Parent's balance sheet. 

During fiscal year 2017, the Parent formed a joint venture with RIB Software AG, a provider of technology for the 
construction industry. This joint venture will offer a fully integrated enterprise software platform for building and housing 
projects. The Parent contributed $60.0 million for a non-controlling interest in this joint venture. This contribution, net of the 
Parent's equity in earnings which is immaterial, is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement 

 
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16 "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other 

Than Inventory", intended to improve the accounting for the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other 
than inventory. This guidance is effective for the Parent beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2019, with early adoption 
permitted in the first interim period of fiscal year 2018. The Parent adopted the guidance effective April 1, 2017 and it did not 
have a material impact on its consolidated balance sheets. 

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-17 "Consolidation (Topic 810): Interests Held through Related Parties 
That Are under Common Control" to amend the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity that is the single decision 
maker of a variable interest entity ("VIE") should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are 
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under common control with the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that VIE. This 
guidance requires that the amendments be applied on a retrospective or modified retrospective basis, and it is effective for the 
Parent beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Parent adopted the guidance 
effective April 1, 2017 and it did not have a material impact on its consolidated balance sheets. 

 
3.  SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 
 

 Equity Compensation Plans 
 

Historically, the Parent's primary plan used for granting equity compensation awards was the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan 
(the "2010 Plan"). Effective August 15, 2017, awards are granted under the Parent's 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2017 
Plan"), which was approved by the Parent's shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, to replace the 
2010 Plan. 

 
During fiscal year 2016, in conjunction with the acquisition of NEXTracker, the Parent assumed all of the outstanding, 

unvested share bonus awards and outstanding, unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of NEXTracker, and 
converted all these shares into Parent awards. As a result, the Parent now offers the 2014 NEXTracker Equity Incentive Plan 
(the "NEXTracker Plan"), which is also administered by the Parent. 

 
Additionally, during fiscal year 2017, in conjunction with an immaterial acquisition, the Parent assumed all of the 

outstanding, unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of the acquiree, and converted all of these shares into Flex 
awards. As a result, the Parent now offers an additional equity compensation plan, the BrightBox Technologies 2013 Plan 
(the "BrightBox Plan"). The BrightBox Plan is immaterial to the Company for all periods presented. 

 
As a result of the deconsolidation of Elementum during fiscal year 2018, the Parent no longer grants equity compensation 

awards under the 2013 Elementum Plan. Refer to note 2 for additional information on the deconsolidation. 
 

The 2017 Equity Incentive Plan 

As of March 31, 2018, the Parent had approximately 22.2 million shares available for grant under the 2017 Plan. 
Options issued to employees under the 2017 Plan generally vest over four years and expire ten years from the date of grant. 
Options granted to non-employee directors expire five years from the date of grant. 

The exercise price of options granted to employees is determined by the Parent's Board of Directors or the 
Compensation Committee and may not be less than the closing price of the Parent's ordinary shares on the date of grant. 

The Parent also grants share bonus awards under its equity compensation plan. Share bonus awards are rights to 
acquire a specified number of ordinary shares for no cash consideration in exchange for continued service with the Parent. 
Share bonus awards generally vest in installments over a three to five-year period and unvested share bonus awards are 
forfeited upon termination of employment.  

Vesting for certain share bonus awards is contingent upon both service and market conditions. Further, vesting for 
certain share bonus awards granted to certain executive officers is contingent upon meeting certain free cash flow targets. 

Determining Fair Value - Options and share bonus awards 

Valuation and Amortization Method—The Parent estimates the fair value of share options granted under the 2017 Plan 
using the Black-Scholes valuation method and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. The fair market value of 
share bonus awards granted, other than those awards with a market condition, is the closing price of the Parent's ordinary 
shares on the date of grant and is generally recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the respective 
vesting period. 

Expected Term—The Parent's expected term used in the Black-Scholes valuation method represents the period that the 
Parent's share options are expected to be outstanding and is determined based on historical experience of similar awards, 
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giving consideration to the contractual terms of the share options, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee 
behavior as influenced by changes to the terms of its share options. 

Expected Volatility—The Parent's expected volatility used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is derived from a 
combination of implied volatility related to publicly traded options to purchase Parent ordinary shares and historical 
variability in the Parent's periodic share price. 

Expected Dividend—The Parent has never paid dividends on its ordinary shares and accordingly the dividend yield 
percentage is zero for all periods. 

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The Parent bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method on the 
implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury constant maturities issued with a term equivalent to the expected term of 
the option. 

There were no options granted under the 2017 Plan during fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Determining Fair Value - Share bonus awards with service and market conditions 

Valuation and Amortization Method—The Parent estimates the fair value of share bonus awards granted under the 2010 
Plan whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market conditions using Monte Carlo simulation. This fair value is 
then amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, which is the service period. 

Expected volatility of Flex—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatility of 
Flex's stock price over a period equal to the service period of the share bonus awards granted. The service period is three 
years for those share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Average peer volatility—Volatility used in a Monte Carlo simulation is derived from the historical volatilities of the 
Standard and Poor's ("S&P") 500 index for the share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Average Peer Correlation—Correlation coefficients were used to model the movement of Flex's stock price relative to 
the members of the S&P 500 index for the share bonus awards granted in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 

Expected Dividend and Risk-Free Interest Rate assumptions—Same methodology as discussed above. 

The fair value of the Parent's share-bonus awards under the 2017 and 2010 Plans, whereby vesting is contingent on 
meeting certain market conditions, for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 was estimated using the following weighted-average 
assumptions: 

 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018  2017 

Expected volatility 25.1 %  25.8 % 
Average peer volatility 28.7 %  25.1 % 
Average peer correlation 0.6   0.6  

Expected dividends 0.0 %  0.0 % 
Risk-free interest rate 1.5 %  0.9 % 

 

Share-Based Awards Activity 

The following is a summary of option activity for the Parent's 2017 and 2010 Plans ("Price" reflects the weighted-
average exercise price): 
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 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 

 Options  Price  Options  Price 

Outstanding, beginning of fiscal year 142,327   $ 8.97   2,369,636   $ 8.31  
Granted —   —   —   —  

Exercised (125,949 )  8.63   (1,573,356 )  6.89  

Forfeited (9,500 )  11.55   (653,953 )  12.39  

Outstanding, end of fiscal year 6,878   $ 9.78   142,327   $ 8.97  
Options exercisable, end of fiscal year 5,751   $ 9.52   138,950   $ 8.93  

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the Parent's 2017 Plan (calculated as the difference between 
the exercise price of the underlying award and the price of the Parent's ordinary shares determined as of the time of option 
exercise for options exercised in-the-money) was $1.1 million during fiscal year 2018. The aggregate intrinsic value of 
options exercised under the Parent's 2010 Plan was $9.3 million during fiscal year 2017. 

Cash received from option exercises under the 2017 Plan was $1.1 million for fiscal year 2018. Cash received from 
option exercises under the 2010 Plan was $10.9 million for fiscal year 2017. 

As of March 31, 2018 the aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding, options vested and expected to vest, and 
options exercisable under the Parent's 2017 Plan were immaterial. The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference 
between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of the Parent's ordinary shares as of March 31, 2018 
for an immaterial amount of options that were in-the-money at March 31, 2018.  

The following table summarizes the Parent's share bonus award activity under the 2017 and 2010 Plans ("Price" 
reflects the weighted-average grant-date fair value): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 

 Shares  Price  Shares  Price 

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, beginning of fiscal year 15,698,582   $ 12.44   17,000,076   $ 10.77  
Granted (1) 6,155,761   16.99   8,261,666   13.46  
Vested (1) (6,473,562 )  12.17   (8,606,246 )  9.44  
Forfeited (1,488,739 )  13.38   (956,914 )  11.20  

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, end of fiscal year 13,892,042   $ 14.52   15,698,582   $ 12.44  
 
(1)  Included in the fiscal years 2018 and 2017 amounts are 0.7 million and 1.7 million of share bonus awards, respectively, representing the number of 

awards achieved above target levels based on the achievement of certain market conditions, as further described in the table below. These awards were 
issued and immediately vested in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying awards.  

Of the 6.2 million unvested share bonus awards granted under the 2017 Plan in fiscal year 2018, approximately 4.7 
million are plain-vanilla unvested share bonus awards with no performance or market conditions with an average grant date 
price of $16.57 per share. Further, approximately 0.2 million of these unvested share bonus awards have an average grant 
date price of $16.34 per share and represents the target amount of grants made to certain executive officers whereby vesting 
is contingent on meeting certain free cash flow targets. These awards cliff vest after three years and will ultimately pay out 
over a range from zero up to a maximum of 0.4 million of the target payment based on a measurement of cumulative three-
year increase of free cash flow from operations of the Parent. Further, 0.6 million of these unvested share bonus awards 
granted in fiscal year 2018 represents the target amount of grants made to certain key employees whereby vesting is 
contingent on certain market conditions. The average grant date fair value of these awards contingent on certain market 
conditions was estimated to be $20.25 per award and was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. Vesting information of 
these shares are further detailed in the table below. Finally, the remaining balance of 0.7 million represents the number of 
awards achieved above target levels, as described in the table above. 
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Of the 13.9 million unvested share bonus awards outstanding under the 2017 Plan as of the fiscal year ended 2018, 
approximately 2.0 million of unvested share bonus awards represents the target amount of grants made to certain key 
employees whereby vesting is contingent on meeting certain market conditions summarized as follows: 

  Targeted 
number of  

awards as of  
March 31, 2018  

(in shares)  

  
Range of shares 

that may be issued (1)  

 
  Average 

grant date  
fair value  

(per share) 

  
   

Assessment dates Year of grant   Minimum  Maximum  
Fiscal 2018  623,620   $ 20.25   —   1,247,240   June 2020 
Fiscal 2017  677,523   $ 17.57   —   1,355,046   June 2019 
Fiscal 2016  648,929   $ 14.96   —   1,297,858   June 2018 
Totals  1,950,072       3,900,144    

 
(1)      Vesting ranges from zero to 200% based on measurement of Flex's total shareholder return against the Standard and Poor's ("S&P") 500 Composite 

Index. 

The Parent will continue to recognize share-based compensation expense for awards with market conditions regardless 
of whether such awards will ultimately vest. During fiscal year 2018, 1.4 million shares vested in connection with the share 
bonus awards with market conditions granted in fiscal year 2015.  

The total intrinsic value of share bonus awards vested under the Parent's 2017 Plan was $108.4 million and $109.5 
million during fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, based on the closing price of the Parent's ordinary shares on the date 
vested. 

The 2014 NEXTracker Equity Incentive Plan 

All shares previously granted under the NEXTracker Plan are the result of the Parent's conversion of all outstanding, 
unvested shares of NEXTracker into unvested shares of the Parent, as part of the acquisition. During fiscal year 2018, the 
Parent modified the vesting conditions of 0.3 million unvested options and 0.5 million share bonus awards under the 
NEXTracker Plan contingent on meeting certain performance targets.  These options and share bonus awards were then re-
granted to vest in installments over a three-year period commencing September 29, 2017.  The Parent determined that the 
transaction falls under the accounting for modification of awards, and accordingly adjusted the recognized compensation 
expense with an immaterial impact on the statement of operations for fiscal year 2018. 

Options issued to employees under the NEXTracker Plan generally have a vesting period of two to four years from 
vesting commencement date and expire ten years from the date of grant.  

The exercise price of options granted to employees was determined by the Parent based on a conversion rate agreed 
upon in the purchase agreement of NEXTracker. 

Share bonus awards issued to employees under the NEXTracker Plan vest in installments over a three to five-year 
period from vesting commencement date, and unvested share bonus awards are forfeited upon termination of employment. 
Vesting for certain of these share bonus awards is contingent on meeting certain performance targets over a three-year period 
commencing September 29, 2017, following the modification of vesting conditions described above. 

Determining Fair Value 

As noted above, the Parent re-granted certain shares options under the NEXTracker Plan during fiscal year 2018 after 
modifying the vesting conditions.  The fair value of share options granted under the NEXTracker Plan for fiscal year 2018 
was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions: 
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 Fiscal Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

Expected term 6.5 years 
Expected volatility 28.8% 
Expected dividends 0.0% 
Risk-free interest rate 2.1% 
Weighted-average fair value $16.29 
  

Share-Based Awards Activity 

The following is a summary of option activity for the NEXTracker Plan ("Price" reflects the weighted-average exercise 
price): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 

 Options  Price  Options  Price 

Outstanding, beginning of fiscal year 1,636,016   $ 3.61   2,741,854   $ 3.44  
Granted 288,386   0.54   —   —  

Exercised (510,322 )  3.27   (709,845 )  2.24  

Forfeited (352,820 )  5.69   (395,993 )  4.64  

Outstanding, end of fiscal year 1,061,260   $ 3.55   1,636,016   $ 3.61  

Options exercisable, end of fiscal year 352,829   $ 5.11   369,015   $ 5.00  

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the NEXTracker plan (calculated as the difference between the 
exercise price of the underlying award and the price of the Parent's ordinary shares determined as of the time of option 
exercise for options exercised in-the-money) was $7.3 million and $8.0 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Cash received from option exercises under the NEXTracker Plan was $1.7 million and $1.6 million for fiscal year 2018 
and 2017, respectively. 

As of March 31, 2018 the aggregate intrinsic value, for options outstanding, options vested and expected to vest, and 
options exercisable under the Parent's NEXTracker Plan, were $13.6 million, $13.6 million, and $4.0 million, respectively.  
The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the 
quoted price of the Parent's ordinary shares as of March 31, 2018 for the approximately 1.1 million options under the 
NEXTracker Plan that were in-the-money at March 31, 2018.  

The following table summarizes the Parent's share bonus award activity under the NEXTracker Plan ("Price" reflects 
the weighted-average grant-date fair value): 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 

 2018 2017 

 Shares  Price  Shares  Price 

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, beginning of fiscal year 1,543,437   $ 10.23   2,309,096   $ 10.27  
Granted 524,978   16.73   —   —  

Vested (471,831 )  7.63   (705,738 )  10.19  

Forfeited (868,934 )  10.18   (59,921 )  10.27  

Unvested share bonus awards outstanding, end of fiscal year 727,650   $ 11.85   1,543,437   $ 10.23  
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The total intrinsic value of share bonus awards vested under the Parent's NEXTracker Plan was $8.0 million and $9.6 
million, during fiscal year 2018 and 2017, respectively, based on the closing price of the Parent's ordinary shares on the date 
vested. 
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4.  BANK BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

     Bank borrowings and long-term debt are as follows: 
 

  As of March 31, 
  2018   2017 
  (In thousands) 
4.625% Notes due February 2020 $ 500,000   $ 500,000  

Term Loan, including current portion, due in installments through 
November 2021  687,813 

 
  700,000 

 

Term Loan, including current portion, due in installments through June 
2022  483,656 

 
  502,500 

 

5.000% Notes due February 2023  500,000    500,000  

4.750% Notes due June 2025  596,387    595,979  

Debt issuance costs  (13,532 )   (15,705 ) 
  2,754,324    2,782,774  
Current portion, net of debt issuance costs  (40,446 )   (56,177 ) 
Non-current portion $ 2,713,878   $ 2,726,597  

 
 

The weighted average interest rates for the Parent’s long-term debt were 4.1% and 3.5% as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 
 

Repayments of the Parent’s long-term debt are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending March 31,  Amount 
  (In thousands) 
2018 $ 41,375  

2019  541,375  

2020  60,219  

2021  689,313  

2022  839,188  

Thereafter  596,386  

  $ 2,767,856  

 
Term Loan due November 2021 
 

In August 2013, the Parent entered into a $600 million term loan agreement due August 30, 2018. In November 2016, the 
Parent entered into a new arrangement to extend the maturity date of the agreement from August 30, 2018 to November 30, 
2021, and borrowed an incremental amount of $130 million under this term loan, thereby increasing the total amount under 
the term loan to $700 million. This loan is repayable in quarterly installments of $4.1 million, which commenced October 31, 
2017 and continue through September 30, 2021, with the remaining amount due at maturity. 

 
Borrowings under this term loan bear interest, at the Parent's option, either at (i) LIBOR plus the applicable margin for 

LIBOR loans ranging between 1.125% and 2.125%, based on the Parent's credit ratings or (ii) the base rate (the greatest of 
the prime rate in effect on each day as published in The Wall Street Journal, the federal funds rate plus 0.5% and LIBOR for a 
one-month interest period plus 1.00%) plus an applicable margin ranging between 0.125% and 1.125%, based on the 
Company's credit rating. 
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This term loan is unsecured, and contains customary restrictions on the Parent's and its subsidiaries' ability to (i) incur 
certain debt, (ii) make certain investments, (iii) make certain acquisitions of other entities, (iv) incur liens, (v) dispose of 
assets, (vi) make non-cash distributions to shareholders, and (vii) engage in transactions with affiliates. These covenants are 
subject to a number of exceptions and limitations. This term loan agreement also requires that the Parent maintain a 
maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization), and 
a minimum interest coverage ratio, as defined therein, during its term; provided that the requirement to maintain the 
minimum interest coverage ratio may be suspended in certain circumstances. As of March 31, 2018, the Parent was in 
compliance with the covenants under this term loan agreement. 

 
Term Loan Agreement due June 2022 and Revolving Line of Credit 

 
In June 2017, the Parent entered into a five-year credit facility consisting of a $1.75 billion revolving credit facility and a 

$502.5 million term loan, which is due to mature on June 30, 2022 (the "2022 Credit Facility"). This 2022 Credit Facility 
replaced the Parent's $2.1 billion credit facility, which was due to mature in March 2019. The outstanding principal of the 
term loan portion of the 2022 Credit Facility is repayable in quarterly installments of approximately $6.3 million from 
September 30, 2017 through June 30, 2020 and approximately $12.6 million from September 30, 2020 through March 31, 
2022 with the remainder due upon maturity. The Parent determined that effectively extending the maturity date of the 
revolving credit and repaying the term loan due March 2019 qualified as a debt modification and consequently all 
unamortized debt issuance costs related to the $2.1 billion credit facility are capitalized and will be amortized over the term 
of the 2022 Credit Facility. 

 
Borrowings under the 2022 Credit Facility bear interest, at the Parent’s option, either at (i) the Base Rate, which is 

defined as the greatest of (a) the Administrative Agent’s prime rate, (b) the federal funds effective rate, plus 0.50% and (c) 
the LIBOR (the London Interbank Offered Rate) rate that would be calculated as of each day in respect of a proposed LIBOR 
loan with a one-month interest period, plus 1.0%; plus, in the case of each of clauses (a) through (c), an applicable margin 
ranging from 0.125% to 0.875% per annum, based on the Parent’s credit ratings (as determined by Standard & Poor’s 
Financial Services LLC, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Fitch Ratings Inc.) or (ii) LIBOR plus the applicable margin for 
LIBOR loans ranging between 1.125% and 1.875% per annum, based on the Parent’s credit ratings. 

 
The 2022 Credit Facility is unsecured, and contains customary restrictions on the ability of the Parent and its subsidiaries 

to (i) incur certain debt, (ii) make certain investments, (iii) make certain acquisitions of other entities, (iv) incur liens, (v) 
dispose of assets, (vi) make non-cash distributions to shareholders, and (vii) engage in transactions with affiliates. These 
covenants are subject to a number of significant exceptions and limitations. The 2022 Credit Facility also requires that the 
Parent maintain a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and 
amortization), and a minimum interest coverage ratio during the term of the 2022 Credit Facility. As of March 31, 2018, the 
Parent was in compliance with the covenants under the 2022 Credit Facility agreement. 

 
 
Notes due February 2020 and February 2023 
 

In February 2013, the Parent issued $500.0 million of 4.625% Notes due February 15, 2020 and $500.0 million of 
5.000% Notes due February 15, 2023 (collectively the “Notes”) in a private offering pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S 
under the Securities Act. In July 2013, the Parent exchanged these notes for new notes with substantially similar terms and 
completed the registration of these notes with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Parent received net proceeds of 
approximately $990.6 million from the issuance and used those proceeds, together with $9.4 million of cash on hand, to 
repay $1.0 billion of outstanding borrowings under its previous term loan that was due October 2014. 

 
Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually, which commenced on August 15, 2013.  The Notes are senior unsecured 

obligations of the Parent, rank equally with all of the Parent’s other existing and future senior and unsecured debt obligations, 
and up until March 31, 2017 were guaranteed, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally on an unsecured basis, by 
certain of the Parent’s 100% owned subsidiaries (the "guarantor subsidiaries"). Upon the termination of the $2.1 billion credit 
facility, all guarantor subsidiaries were released from their guarantees under each indenture for each Note. 
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At any time prior to maturity, the Parent may redeem some or all of the Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount of the Notes redeemed, plus an applicable premium accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable 
redemption date.  Upon the occurrence of a change of control repurchase event (as defined in the Notes indenture), the Parent 
must offer to repurchase the Notes at a repurchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Notes repurchased, plus 
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable repurchase date. 

 
The indenture governing the Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of the Parent and 

certain of the Parent’s subsidiaries to create liens; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; create, incur, issue, assume or 
guarantee any funded debt; and consolidate or merge with, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of the Parent’s 
assets to, another person.  These covenants are subject to a number of significant limitations and exceptions set forth in the 
indenture. The indenture also provides for customary events of default, including, but not limited to, cross defaults to certain 
specified other debt of the Parent and its subsidiaries. In the case of an event of default arising from specified events of 
bankruptcy or insolvency, all outstanding Notes will become due and payable immediately without further action or notice. If 
any other event of default under the agreement occurs or is continuing, the applicable trustee or holders of at least 25% in 
aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding Notes may declare all of the Notes to be due and payable 
immediately.  As of March 31, 2018, the Parent was in compliance with the covenants in the indenture governing the Notes. 

 
Notes due June 2025 
 
In June 2015, the Parent issued $600 million of 4.750% Notes ("2025 Notes") due June 15, 2025 in a private offering 

pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act, at 99.213% of face value, and an effective yield of 
approximately 4.850%. The Parent received net proceeds of approximately $595.3 million from the issuance which was used 
for general corporate purposes. During January 2016, the Parent exchanged these notes for new notes with substantially 
similar terms and completed the registration of these notes with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
The Parent incurred approximately $7.9 million of costs in conjunction with the issuance of the 2025 Notes. The issuance 

costs were capitalized and presented on the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the Notes. 
 
Interest on the 2025 Notes is payable semi-annually, commencing on December 15, 2015. The 2025 Notes are senior 

unsecured obligations of the Parent, rank equally with all of the Parent’s other existing and future senior and unsecured debt 
obligations, and up until March 31, 2017 were guaranteed, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally on an unsecured 
basis, by certain of the Parent’s 100% owned subsidiaries (the "guarantor subsidiaries"). Upon the termination of the $2.1 
billion credit facility, all guarantor subsidiaries were released from their guarantees under each indenture for each Note. 

 
At any time prior to March 15, 2025, the Parent may redeem some or all of the 2025 Notes at a redemption price equal 

to 100% of the principal amount of the 2025 Notes redeemed, plus an applicable premium and accrued and unpaid interest, if 
any, to the applicable redemption date. Upon the occurrence of a change of control repurchase event (as defined in the 2025 
Notes indenture), the Parent must offer to repurchase the 2025 Notes at a repurchase price equal to 101% of the principal 
amount of the 2025 Notes repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable repurchase date. 

 
The indenture governing the 2025 Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of the Parent and 

certain of the Parent's subsidiaries to create liens; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; create, incur, issue, assume or 
guarantee any funded debt; and consolidate or merge with, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of the Parent's 
assets to, another person, or permit any other person to consolidate, merge, combine or amalgamate with or into the Parent. 
These covenants are subject to a number of significant limitations and exceptions set forth in the indenture. The indenture 
also provides for customary events of default, including, but not limited to, cross defaults to certain specified other debt of 
the Parent and its subsidiaries. In the case of an event of default arising from specified events of bankruptcy or insolvency, all 
outstanding 2025 Notes will become due and payable immediately without further action or notice. If any other event of 
default under the agreement occurs or is continuing, the applicable trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal 
amount of the then outstanding 2025 Notes may declare all of the 2025 Notes to be due and payable immediately, but upon 
certain conditions such declaration and its consequences may be rescinded and annulled by the holders of a majority in 
principal amount of the 2025 Notes. As of March 31, 2018, the Parent was in compliance with the covenants in the indenture 
governing the 2025 Notes. 
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Other Credit Lines 

 
The Parent also has uncommitted bilateral facilities in the amount of $25.0 million in the aggregate, under which there 

were no amounts outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Foreign Currency Contracts 
 

The Parent enters into short-term foreign currency derivatives contracts, including forward, swap and options contracts to 
hedge only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities, primarily intercompany balances. The 
Parent has established risk management programs to protect against volatility in the value of non-functional currency 
denominated monetary assets and liabilities.  Gains and losses on the Parent’s derivative contracts are designed to offset 
losses and gains on the assets and liabilities and transactions hedged, and accordingly, generally do not subject the Parent to 
risk of significant accounting losses. The Parent hedges committed exposures and does not engage in speculative 
transactions. The credit risk of these derivative contracts is minimized since the contracts are with large financial institutions 
and accordingly, fair value adjustments related to the credit risk of the counterparty financial institution were not material. 
The aggregate notional amount of outstanding contracts was $1.9 billion as of March 31, 2018. These foreign exchange 
contracts, which expire in approximately one month, settle primarily in the Euro. 

 
6.  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
 

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss by component, net of tax, during fiscal years ended March 31, 
2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2018 

 

Unrealized loss on 
derivative  

instruments and  
other  

Foreign currency 
translation  

adjustments  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Beginning balance $ (32,426 )  $ (95,717 )  $ (128,143 ) 
Other comprehensive gain before reclassifications 15,667   46,022  3  61,689  

Net gains reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss (18,987 )  (404 )  (19,391 ) 

Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) (3,320 )  45,618   42,298  

Ending balance $ (35,746 )  $ (50,099 )  $ (85,845 ) 
 

 Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

Unrealized loss on 
derivative  

instruments and  
other  

Foreign currency 
translation  

adjustments  Total 

 (In thousands) 

Beginning balance $ (41,522 )  $ (94,393 )  $ (135,915 ) 
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications 6,925   (1,198 )  5,727  

Net (gains) losses reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss 2,171 

 
 (126 )  2,045 

 

Net current-period other comprehensive gain (loss) 9,096   (1,324 )  7,772  

Ending balance $ (32,426 )  $ (95,717 )  $ (128,143 ) 
 
Substantially all unrealized losses relating to derivative instruments and other, reclassified from accumulated other 

comprehensive loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, was recognized as a component of cost of sales in the 
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consolidated statement of operations, which primarily relate to the Parent’s foreign currency contracts accounted for as cash 
flow hedges. 
 
7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets 
and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair value, the Parent considers the principal or most advantageous 
market in which it would transact, and it considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability. The accounting guidance for fair value establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective 
evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument’s categorization within the fair value 
hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy is 
as follows: 

Level 1 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

 
The Parent does not have any assets or liabilities valued using Level 1 observable inputs. 

Level 2 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices 
for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets) such as 
cash and cash equivalents and money market funds; or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or 
can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data. 

The Parent has deferred compensation plans for its officers and certain other employees. Deferred amounts under the 
plans are invested in hypothetical investments selected by the participant or the participant’s investment manager. The 
Parent’s deferred compensation plans comprise of cash and cash equivalents, money market funds and mutual funds, which 
are valued using level 2 inputs, such as interest rates and maturity periods. Due to their short-term nature, their carrying 
amount approximates fair value. 

 

The Parent values foreign exchange forward contracts using level 2 observable inputs which primarily include foreign 

currency and interest spot and forward rates quoted by banks or foreign currency dealers. 

Level 3 - Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are 
significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities. 
 

 The Parent does not have any assets or liabilities valued using unobservable inputs. 

 

There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy during the fiscal years 2018 and 2017. 
 
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 
 

The following table presents the Parent’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 

2018 and 2017: 
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 Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2018 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
 (In thousands) 
Assets:        
Deferred compensation plan assets:        
    Money market accounts $ —   $ 1,418   $ —   $ 1,418  

    Mutual funds —   4,764   —   4,764  

Liabilities:        
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ —   $ (2,793 )  $ —   $ (2,793 ) 
        
 Fair Value Measurements as of March 31, 2017 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
 (In thousands) 
Assets:        
Deferred compensation plan assets:        
    Money market accounts $ —   $ 910   $ —   $ 910  

    Mutual funds —   4,214   —   4,214  

Liabilities:        
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ —   $ (4,265 )  $ —   $ (4,265 ) 

 
 

Other financial instruments 

 

The following table presents the Parent’s liabilities not carried at fair value as at March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

 As of March 31, 2018  As of March 31, 2017   
 Carrying  Fair  Carrying  Fair  Fair Value 
 Amount  Value  Amount  Value  Hierarchy 
 (In thousands)   
4.625% Notes due February 2020 500,000   513,596   500,000   526,255   Level 1 
Term Loan, including current portion, due in 
installments through November 2021 687,813 

 
 689,966 

 
 700,000 

 
 699,566 

 
 Level 1 

Term Loan, including current portion, due in 
installments through June 2022 (1) 483,656 

 
 485,470 

 
 502,500 

 
 503,756 

 
 Level 1 

5.000% Notes due February 2023 500,000   525,292   500,000   534,820   Level 1 
4.750% Notes due June 2025 596,387   627,407   595,979   633,114   Level 1 
Total $ 2,767,856   $ 2,841,731   $ 2,798,479   $ 2,897,511    

 
(1)    During fiscal year 2018, the Parent entered into a new agreement that effectively extended the maturity date of the loan 

from March 31, 2019 to June 30, 2022. Refer to note 4 to the Supplementary Financial Statements of the Parent for 
further details of the arrangement. 

 
All Term Loans and Notes presented in the table above are valued based on broker trading prices in active markets. 

 
 
8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Litigation and other legal matters 
 
In connection with the matters described below, the Parent has accrued for loss contingencies where it believes that 

losses are probable and estimable. The Parent does not believe that the amounts accrued are material. Although it is 
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reasonably possible that actual losses could be in excess of the Parent’s accrual, the Parent is unable to estimate a reasonably 
possible loss or range of loss in excess of its accrual, except as discussed below, due to various reasons, including, among 
others, that: (i) the proceedings are in early stages or no claims has been asserted, (ii) specific damages have not been sought 
in all of these matters, (iii) damages, if asserted, are considered unsupported and/or exaggerated, (iv) there is uncertainty as to 
the outcome of pending appeals, motions, or settlements, (v) there are significant factual issues to be resolved, and/or (vi) 
there are novel legal issues or unsettled legal theories presented. Any such excess loss could have a material adverse effect on 
the Parent’s results of operations or cash flows for a particular period or on the Parent’s financial condition. 

In addition, the Parent provides design and engineering services to its customers and also designs and makes its own 
products. As a consequence of these activities, its customers are requiring the Parent to take responsibility for intellectual 
property to a greater extent than in its manufacturing and assembly businesses. Although the Parent believes that its 
intellectual property assets and licenses are sufficient for the operation of its business as it currently conduct it, from time to 
time third parties do assert patent infringement claims against the Parent or its customers. If and when third parties make 
assertions regarding the ownership or right to use intellectual property, the Parent could be required to either enter into 
licensing arrangements or to resolve the issue through litigation. Such license rights might not be available to the Parent on 
commercially acceptable terms, if at all, and any such litigation might not be resolved in its favor. Additionally, litigation 
could be lengthy and costly and could materially harm the Parent's financial condition regardless of the outcome. The Parent 
also could be required to incur substantial costs to redesign a product or re-perform design services. 

From time to time, the Parent enters into IP licenses (e.g., patent licenses and software licenses) with third parties which 
obligate the Parent to report covered behavior to the licensor and pay license fees to the licensor for certain activities or 
products, or that enable our use of third party technologies. The Parent may also decline to enter into licenses for intellectual 
property that it does not think is useful for or used in its operations, or for which its customers or suppliers have licenses or 
have assumed responsibility. Given the diverse and varied nature of its business and the location of its business around the 
world, certain activities the Parent performs, such as providing assembly services in China and India, may fall outside the 
scope of those licenses or may not be subject to the applicable intellectual property rights. The Parent's licensors may 
disagree and claim royalties are owed for such activities. In addition, the basis (e.g. base price) for any royalty amounts owed 
are audited by licensors and may be challenged.  Some of these disagreements, may lead to claims and litigation that might 
not be resolved in the Parent's favor. Additionally, litigation could be lengthy and costly and could materially harm the 
Parent's financial condition regardless of the outcome. In March 2018, the Parent received an inquiry from a licensor 
referencing a patent license agreement, and requesting information relating to royalties for products that it assembles for a 
customer in China. If any of these inquiries result in a claim, the Parent intends to contest and defend against any such claim 
vigorously. If a claim is asserted and the Parent is unsuccessful in its defense, a material loss is reasonably possible. The 
Parent cannot predict or estimate an amount or reasonable range of outcomes with respect to the matter. 

On May 8, 2018, a putative class action was filed in the Northern District of California against the Parent and certain 
officers alleging violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Rule 10b-5, promulgated 
thereunder, alleging misstatements and/or omissions in certain of the Parent’s financial results, press releases and SEC filings 
made during the putative class period of January 26, 2017 through April 26, 2018. The deadline for applications for 
appointment as lead plaintiff is July 9, 2018. 

On April 21, 2016, SunEdison, Inc. (together with certain of its subsidiaries, "SunEdison") filed for protection under 
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Parent recognized a bad debt 
reserve charge of $61.0 million associated with its outstanding SunEdison receivables and accepted return of previously 
shipped inventory of approximately $90.0 million. SunEdison stated in schedules filed with the Bankruptcy Court that, 
within the 90 days preceding SunEdison's bankruptcy filing, the Parent received approximately $98.6 million of inventory 
and cash transfers of $69.2 million, which in aggregate represents the Parent's estimate of the maximum reasonably possible 
contingent loss. On April 15, 2018, a subsidiary of the Parent together with its subsidiaries and affiliates, entered into a 
tolling agreement with the trustee of the SunEdison Litigation Trust to toll any applicable statute of limitations or other time-
related defense that might exist in regards to any potential claims that either party might be able to assert against the other for 
a period that will end at the earlier to occur of: (a) 60 days after a party provides written notice of termination; (b) six years 
from the effective date of April 15, 2018; or (c) such other date as the parties may agree in writing. No preference claims 
have been asserted against the Parent and consideration has been given to the related contingencies based on the facts 
currently known. The Parent has a number of affirmative and direct defenses to any potential claims for recovery and intends 
to vigorously defend any such claim, if asserted. 
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One of the Parent's Brazilian subsidiaries has received related assessments for certain sales and import taxes. There are 
six tax assessments totaling 346 million Brazilian reals (approximately USD $104 million based on the exchange rate as of 
March 31, 2018). The assessments are in various stages of the review process at the administrative level and no tax 
proceeding has been finalized yet. The Parent has meritorious defenses and plans to continue to vigorously oppose all of 
these assessments, as well as any future assessments. The Parent does not expect final judicial determination on any of these 
claims for several years. 

In addition to the matters discussed above, from time to time, the Parent is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and 
litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. The Parent defends itself vigorously against any such claims. Although 
the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, management expects that any losses that are probable or 
reasonably possible of being incurred as a result of these matters, which are in excess of amounts already accrued in the 
Parent’s balance sheets, would not be material to the financial statements as a whole. 

Guarantees 
 

As of March 31, 2018, the Parent issued approximately $2.3 billion in bank guarantees in connection with bank 
credit extensions of certain of its subsidiaries. The Parent also issued other guarantees in connection with supplier 
arrangements and guarantees associated with certain operating leases that were entered into by its subsidiaries. 
 
9. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Parent is a Singapore corporation and is a non-resident for Singapore tax purposes. Non-Singapore resident 
taxpayers, subject to certain exceptions, are subject to income tax on (1) income that is accrued in or derived from 
Singapore and (2) foreign income received in Singapore. 
 

Since the Parent did not derive income from or receive foreign income in Singapore, it is not subject to Singapore 
income tax. To the extent that the Parent continues to meet the above-mentioned requirements as determined by current 
law, no Singapore income tax will be imposed on the Parent. In addition, the Parent has no material taxable income in 
other jurisdictions. Accordingly, the Parent records minimal current income tax expense and does not record any 
deferred income taxes. 
 
10. SHARE REPURCHASE PLAN 
 

During fiscal year 2018, the Parent repurchased approximately 10.8 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of 
approximately $180.0 million under two separate repurchase plans as further discussed below. 

During the first and second quarters of fiscal year 2018, the Parent repurchased the entire remaining amount, or 
approximately 5.5 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of approximately $90.1 million, under the share repurchase 
plan that was approved by the Parent's Board of Directors on August 24, 2016 and the Parent's shareholders at the 2016 
Annual General Meeting. The Parent retired all of these shares. 

Under the Parent’s current share repurchase program, the Board of Directors authorized repurchases of its outstanding 
ordinary shares for up to $500 million in accordance with the share repurchase mandate approved by the Parent’s 
shareholders at the date of the most recent Annual General Meeting held on August 15, 2017. During fiscal year 2018, the 
Parent repurchased approximately 5.3 million shares for an aggregate purchase value of approximately $89.9 million under 
this plan, and retired all of these shares. As of March 31, 2018, shares in the aggregate amount of $410.1 million were 
available to be repurchased under the current plan. 

 

 


